
 
 

Report Prepared by:   
Margo Bellamy, Board President 

Bellamy_margo@asdk12.org  
 

1 

Anchorage School Board 
Community Council Report  

January 2024 
 

 

1. NEW! Recap of most recent School Board Work Session and Regular Meeting:  
https://www.asdk12.org/site/default.aspx?PageType=3&DomainID=4&ModuleInstanceID=115&Vie
wID=6446EE88-D30C-497E-9316-3F8874B3E108&RenderLoc=0&FlexDataID=83822&PageID=1  
 

2. School Board Meetings:  Monthly on the 1st & 3rd Tuesdays as follows: 
o Work Sessions:   4pm 
o Executive Sessions:   5pm 
o Regular Meetings:   6pm-10pm 

 
3. School Board Committee Meetings: The 1st Thursday of each month.  All are live streamed. 

o Governance Committee Meetings:   @10:30 am    
o Finance Committee Meeting:    @ Noon 
o Communication Committee Meeting:     @ 1pm 

 

4. Special Meetings/Work Sessions: 
• School Board Retreat- January 19th (3-7PM) & January 20th 9am-4pm:   

 
5. Public Comment or Testimony on Action Items:   

• Must Sign-up online to provide in-person, telephonic or written comments:  
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSeVWE-
wiHua43o2AoMSntvjRU2hOo1Wb1rg1dUJaRK0sD03hQ/viewform  

 
• Watch Board Meetings on-line:  https://www.youtube.com/user/AnchorageSD 
 
• Or email the School Board directly@ schoolboard@asdk12.org  

 
6. Science Curriculum Review:  9th grade Physical Science and 10th grade Biology.  

https://www.asdk12.org/site/default.aspx?PageType=3&DomainID=4&ModuleInstanceID=115&ViewID=6446
EE88-D30C-497E-9316-3F8874B3E108&RenderLoc=0&FlexDataID=83613&PageID=1  
 

7. Provide Input on Certificated Staff:  ASD welcomes community input regarding our teacher 
and administrator employees' performance from December through April 30. This timeframe 
allows us to review the input received and take it into consideration during evaluations.  
https://www.asdk12.org/input  

 
8. Goals & Guardrails:   

• Board Retreat on 1/19 & 1/20, to review/revise our Goals & Guardrails--
https://www.asdk12.org/Page/18195 

 

mailto:Bellamy_margo@asdk12.org
https://www.asdk12.org/site/default.aspx?PageType=3&DomainID=4&ModuleInstanceID=115&ViewID=6446EE88-D30C-497E-9316-3F8874B3E108&RenderLoc=0&FlexDataID=83822&PageID=1
https://www.asdk12.org/site/default.aspx?PageType=3&DomainID=4&ModuleInstanceID=115&ViewID=6446EE88-D30C-497E-9316-3F8874B3E108&RenderLoc=0&FlexDataID=83822&PageID=1
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSeVWE-wiHua43o2AoMSntvjRU2hOo1Wb1rg1dUJaRK0sD03hQ/viewform
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSeVWE-wiHua43o2AoMSntvjRU2hOo1Wb1rg1dUJaRK0sD03hQ/viewform
https://www.youtube.com/user/AnchorageSD
mailto:schoolboard@asdk12.org
https://www.asdk12.org/site/default.aspx?PageType=3&DomainID=4&ModuleInstanceID=115&ViewID=6446EE88-D30C-497E-9316-3F8874B3E108&RenderLoc=0&FlexDataID=83613&PageID=1
https://www.asdk12.org/site/default.aspx?PageType=3&DomainID=4&ModuleInstanceID=115&ViewID=6446EE88-D30C-497E-9316-3F8874B3E108&RenderLoc=0&FlexDataID=83613&PageID=1
https://www.asdk12.org/input
https://www.asdk12.org/Page/18195


 
 

Report Prepared by:   
Margo Bellamy, Board President 

Bellamy_margo@asdk12.org  
 

2 

• Progress Monitoring Calendar for Goals & Guardrails:  
https://www.asdk12.org/cms/lib/AK02207157/Centricity/Domain/1184/Cycles%201-5.pdf  

 
9. FY25 Budget Planning:   https://www.asdk12.org/FY25  
 
10. District Initiatives:  
 

• Alaska Reads Act:  https://www.asdk12.org/Page/19823  
 

• Reading for Life:   Learn about the new K-3 Reading Program  
https://www.asdk12.org/Page/13662  
  

• Six Grade to Middle School Transition will be phased in beginning in August 2024. 
https://www.asdk12.org/middlemerge  

 
• Student Wellness & Positive Behavioral Interventions & Supports 

(PBIS):   Supporting students’ behavioral, academic, social, emotional, and mental 
health. https://www.asdk12.org/Page/20026  

 

• 24-25 School Start Times:  All grade levels move to new school start times in August 
2024. The PLC schedule will continue on Mondays.  All grade levels move to new school 
start times. Below is the new schedule starting in August 2024. The delayed start of the 
PLC schedule will continue on Mondays.   https://www.asdk12.org/schoolstarttimes  

 

• Academies of Anchorage:  Transforming how ASD prepares students for life, college & 
Career  https://www.asdk12.org/ccl  

 

11. Other: 
• Volunteer Opportunities:  https://www.asdk12.org/Page/13771  

 
• District Calendars: 

o Academic Calendars:   https://www.asdk12.org/Page/2 
 

o School Board Calendar:  https://www.asdk12.org/Page/10247  
 

o Sports & Activity Schedules:  
https://www.asdk12.org/activities/   

mailto:Bellamy_margo@asdk12.org
https://www.asdk12.org/cms/lib/AK02207157/Centricity/Domain/1184/Cycles%201-5.pdf
https://www.asdk12.org/FY25
https://www.asdk12.org/Page/19823
https://www.asdk12.org/Page/13662
https://www.asdk12.org/middlemerge
https://www.asdk12.org/Page/20026
https://www.asdk12.org/schoolstarttimes
https://www.asdk12.org/ccl
https://www.asdk12.org/Page/13771
https://www.asdk12.org/Page/2
https://www.asdk12.org/Page/10247
https://www.asdk12.org/activities/


Monday, January 22, 2024 
To The Girdwood Board of Supervisors 
 
The Heritage Land Bank Advisory Commission will be holding a meeting on Thursday January 25, 2024 
at 1:30PM. There is one action item on this agenda. Resolution 2024-02 regards a lease renewal for a 
portion of HLB Parcels 4-033A and 4-034 in west Anchorage past the Ted Stevens Anchorage 
International Airport.   
 

As a reminder, the public review period for the DRAFT 2024 Annual Work Program & 2025-2029 Five-
Year Management Plan is currently underway.  This planning document outlines the priori�es and 
proposed development plans for much of the HLB managed lands in the Girdwood Valley.  HLB staff will 
be accep�ng comments sent to HLB@AnchorageAK.gov un�l Friday, February 9, 2024. Please include 
parcel or page number where applicable. Comments received during this period will be included and 
responded to in an appendix of the Work Plan. Any comments received a�er February 9, 2024 will not 
be included in the appendix but will be provided to the HLB Advisory Commission at the public 
hearing. The public hearing for the Work Plan is tenta�vely scheduled for Thursday, February 22, 2024. 

Respec�ully, 

Tim Charnon, HLB Commissioner 

https://www.muni.org/Departments/hlb/SiteAssets/Pages/HLBCommission/2024-02_PHN_Letter.pdf
https://www.muni.org/Departments/hlb/SiteAssets/Pages/HLBCommission/2024_HLBWorkPlan_PUBLICDRAFT.pdf
https://www.muni.org/Departments/hlb/SiteAssets/Pages/HLBCommission/2024_HLBWorkPlan_PUBLICDRAFT.pdf
mailto:HLB@AnchorageAK.gov


 

 

Descrip�on Loca�on Developer Status Further informa�on 
Public 
comments? Notes 

Hotel & 
Retail Store 

Alyeska 
Hwy by 
Brewery Tim Cabana 

Pending 
ACE 
Wetlands 
Fill Permit 

ht p://www.poa.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/Public-
No�ces/Ar�cle/3437767/poa-2023-00206-glacier-creek-pn/ 

Via email or 
mail by July 
24, 2023 

No 
Municipal 
planning 
applica�on 
yet 

Mul�family 
houses 

Alyeska 
Hwy by 
Glacier 
Creek 
Bridge Tim Cabana 

Pending 
ACE 
Wetlands 
Fill Permit 

ht ps://www.poa.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/Public-
No�ces/Ar�cle/3437227/poa-2021-00278-glacier-creek-pn/ 

Via email or 
mail by July 
24, 2023 

Ac�ve 
construc�on 
under MOA 
permits 21-
005 and 22-
001 

Holtan Hills 

North of 
Girdwood 
School 

CY 
Investments 

Rejected 
by 
Assembly See GBOS webpage n/a 

Alterna�ve 
proposals 
possible 
before June 
2025 

Backup gas 
line - clear 
~5000� of 
sec�on line 
easement 

Between 
Ruane Rd 
& Virgin 
Creek 
Drive Enstar 

Pending 
DNR 
decision htp s://aws.state.ak.us/OnlinePublicNo�ces/No�ces/View.aspx?id=211721 

Via mail by 
July 20, 
2023 

Clearing 
~5000� x 
20� wide 
along 
sec�on line 
easement 

Lodge and 
associated 
facili�es 

Girdwood 
Airport 

Glacier 
Valley 
Lodge 

Pending 
DOT lease 
decision htp s://aws.state.ak.us/OnlinePublicNo�ces/No�ces/View.aspx?id=211450 

Via mail by 
July 13, 
2023 

~11 acres 
beyond new 
hangers 

https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.poa.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/Public-Notices/Article/3437767/poa-2023-00206-glacier-creek-pn/__;!!N9vJ2dmNYjWGSw!XR7FASIvY--YxcqDjqKEVGvV-8WYmoMDtz-qOMpjqYMac2-g-gSUVFCLyLqgGah4s4RZ-UOOnqyq863Feq33d8lS8dlAKXENxpvO$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.poa.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/Public-Notices/Article/3437767/poa-2023-00206-glacier-creek-pn/__;!!N9vJ2dmNYjWGSw!XR7FASIvY--YxcqDjqKEVGvV-8WYmoMDtz-qOMpjqYMac2-g-gSUVFCLyLqgGah4s4RZ-UOOnqyq863Feq33d8lS8dlAKXENxpvO$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.poa.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/Public-Notices/Article/3437227/poa-2021-00278-glacier-creek-pn/__;!!N9vJ2dmNYjWGSw!XR7FASIvY--YxcqDjqKEVGvV-8WYmoMDtz-qOMpjqYMac2-g-gSUVFCLyLqgGah4s4RZ-UOOnqyq863Feq33d8lS8dlAKUDoGILs$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.poa.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/Public-Notices/Article/3437227/poa-2021-00278-glacier-creek-pn/__;!!N9vJ2dmNYjWGSw!XR7FASIvY--YxcqDjqKEVGvV-8WYmoMDtz-qOMpjqYMac2-g-gSUVFCLyLqgGah4s4RZ-UOOnqyq863Feq33d8lS8dlAKUDoGILs$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/aws.state.ak.us/OnlinePublicNotices/Notices/View.aspx?id=211721__;!!N9vJ2dmNYjWGSw!XR7FASIvY--YxcqDjqKEVGvV-8WYmoMDtz-qOMpjqYMac2-g-gSUVFCLyLqgGah4s4RZ-UOOnqyq863Feq33d8lS8dlAKbVyH1sg$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/aws.state.ak.us/OnlinePublicNotices/Notices/View.aspx?id=211450__;!!N9vJ2dmNYjWGSw!XR7FASIvY--YxcqDjqKEVGvV-8WYmoMDtz-qOMpjqYMac2-g-gSUVFCLyLqgGah4s4RZ-UOOnqyq863Feq33d8lS8dlAKQc6Xg3q$


Water 
booster 
pump 
sta�on Vail Drive AWWU 

Awai�ng 
Planning 
Applica�on n/a n/a 

Replaces 
booster 
pumps on 
Vail & 
Timberline 
and Echo 
Ridge 

 



January 2023 

CMR 

Whi�er Police Department 

 

 

 

 

 

 

During the holiday season of December 2023 from Christmas through New Years eve, officer maintain a 
high visibility presence in Whi�er and Girdwood.  In Whi�er and Girdwood officers conducted security 
checks and public contacts during the Christmas and New Years weekends. 

 

All officers completed their annual Axon/taser training during December and par�cipated addi�onal 
entry and force techniques training in the beginning of January 2024. 

Addi�onally, January 9, 2024 was Na�onal Police Apprecia�on day, and I would like to thank our Whi�er 
Police Officers and police officer throughout Alaska and the na�on for their dedica�on to serving and 
being the guardian of their respec�ve communi�es.  Addi�onally, I would like personally thank the 
officers’ family for their con�nued ongoing support of their family members on the job every day, night, 
weekend and holiday throughout the year. 

 

February March April May June July August September October November December 
Traffic / DUI / Parking 2 5 7 77 60 78 52 36 3 3 6

Area and Business Security Check 7 18 11 35 22 26 10 37 40 15
Suspicious Activity 3 1 5 5 2 3 4 1

Property Crimes (Theft / Vandalism) 1 2 3 3 8 6 5 1 3
Assault / Disorderly Conduct 2 3 3 2 10 3 8 1 6 9

Drug Problem (Sale / Possession) 1
Civil Problem / Citizen Assist 1 3 9 3 5 11 4 2 6 1 4
Welfare Check / Alarm Drop 3 1 2 4 3 2 2 4

Animal Control / Wildlife 2 5 8 27 27 5
Fire / EMS 4 3 4 14 15 8 16 8 1 5

Other 1 5 3 4 3 9 1 2 3
Annual Sub Total February March April May June July August September October November December 

9 28 46 103 133 157 136 119 72 59 45
907Annual Total (Feb-Dec)

Whittier Police 2023 Statistics - Whittier ONLY

February March April May June July August September October November December 
Traffic / DUI / Parking 34 43 92 126 71 65 43 30 23 27 50

Area and Business Security Check 10 50 112 68 53 71 59 38 54 108 123
Suspicious Activity 4 3 2 6 8 4 1 2 2 1

Property Crimes (Theft / Vandalism) 5 3 7 3 3 8 3 11 4 2 4
Assault / Disorderly Conduct 8 7 12 6 9 11 6 8 7 8 10

Drug Problem (Sale / Possession) 1 1
Civil Problem / Citizen Assist 3 1 3 5 6 5 4 6 3 7
Welfare Check / Alarm Drop 5 7 9 4 7 5 8 9 9 5 4

Animal Control / Wildlife 2 1 5 4 1 7 5
Agency Assist 3 3 2 2 2 1 3 2 3

Other 3 4 2 2 2 6 1 6 2 1 4
Annual Sub Total February March April May June July August September October November December 

71 122 242 215 163 187 130 115 115 158 206
1724Annual Total (Feb-Dec)

Whittier Police 2023 Statistics - Girdwood ONLY



 

 



 Page 1 of 4 

MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE 
GIRDWOOD ROADS, FACILITIES, 

PARKS & RECREATION 

 
 
DATE: January 22, 2024 
 
TO: Girdwood Board of Supervisors 
  
FROM: Kyle Kelley, Girdwood Service Area Manager & Margaret Tyler, Parks and Recreation 
 
SUBJECT: Roads, Facility, Cemetery & P & R Monthly Report 
 
 
DOT is putting the repair the abutment under the Glacier Creek Bridge out to bid shortly. The  
work is expected to be completed by Feb 29. Emergency repair project cannot include additional 
projects, like the path to cross beneath the bridge. However GVSA is working with staff to find a 
way to fund and permit this work in the future. 
 
Be wildlife aware. The moose are ornery! Keep an eye out for them on trails and give them lots 
space. Snow is piling up, please make sure cars parked in municipal lots and along roadways are 
moved frequently and in time for snow clearing and snowbank push back. 
 
Trails Committee, Friends of Girdwood Trails and Girdwood Nordic Ski Club request that 
everyone follow Leave No Trace principles for trail use: No Postholes and No Poop! Staff is 
happy to report that trash cans have been loaded with dog poop bags, let’s keep it up!  
 
Mutt Mitts, trash and park sweep are handled by year-round staff in winter. We do fall behind 
when occupied with snowclearing. If you’re interested in adopting a trash can or mutt mitt 
station, reach out to us! We’ll begin recruiting for summer staff soon. If you see anything that 
needs attention, please contact Kyle kelleykt@muni.org or Margaret tylerms@muni.org.  
 
Girdwood Parks and Rec will be hiring our summer parks caretaker positions shortly. We will 
also be looking for a campground host to reside in the campground from May – September. 
Check posting sites for additional information or check in with Margaret: tylerms@muni.org 
 
Trails:  Trails Plan: Thank you to everyone for your work on the Girdwood Trails Plan. Note 
change in GTP review by Assembly: Introduction on Jan 23 may be delayed. Hearing will be at 
the meeting following introduction. Trails Committee is working on their list of projects for 
2024. 
 
Parks & Amenities:  No dogs on the baseball field, playground, tennis courts, and skate park.    

• Campground: Campground is closed. We will need to evaluate shift in California Creek 
next spring as it impacted sites at the back of the campground loop.  

• Annual Beautification: completed for the season. 
• Playground:  Open. Needs wood chips and sand in 2024. Currently unable to get 

playground quality wood chips for this project.   
• Lions Club Park:  Working on a plan to add a pavilion to the Lions Club Park  

mailto:kelleykt@muni.org
mailto:tylerms@muni.org
mailto:tylerms@muni.org


 Page 2 of 4 

• Disc golf: Open.  
• Library/Community Center: Library is open TUE-SAT 10-6 and has a host of programs 

coming up. Check in with the library for details.   
• Tennis Courts: Closed for the season.  
• Soccer field: Nets have been removed.  
• Sladen J Mohl Ball Field: New sign is up!  
• Skate Park: Skate park is closed for the season. Showdown Throwdown scheduled for 

March 9 and 10 2024. 
 
GBOS Non-profit Grants: The 2024 grant cycle closed. 2023 year end documentation is due in 
January, revision forms after that. Once those are received, we will move forward with 
contracting. 
 
Other Grants:  It’s Grant Season! Outdoor Recreation and Trails 
Advisory Board met Jan 16-18 to discuss the RTP and LWCF Grants. 
Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF) Grant –GVSA applied for 
LWCF funding for the Lions Club Park Pavilion, match is 1:1, with 
match funding coming from municipal, Lions Club, and other private 
sources. LWCF grant request is $103,737.00 for a project costing 
$207,474.00.  This project was recommended to the National Park 
Service for approval. We anticipate hearing about this grant in the summer 
2024. 
Recreational Trails Program Grant (RTP): GTC/GVSA applied for RTP 
funding for the Middle Iditarod National Historic Trail, match is 90:10 with 
match coming from GTC and MOA funds. RTP grant request is 
$179,745.00, match is $19,970.00 for a project costing $199,715.00. This 
project was recommended to the Director of Department of Parks and 
Outdoor Recreation for approval. We expect to know about final 
distributions in time for possible summer work 2024. 
There are still other steps prior to final approval and award of both grants. 
Rasmuson Foundation:  GVSA submitted application for $250,000 Tier 2 

Grant to assist with construction of the suspension 
bridge to replace the decommissioned hand tram. 
Application is being reactivated now. 
KMTA Grant: Summer Trails grant is wrapped up and reimbursement of 
$14,536 received. There is likely not a KMTA Grant round in 2024. 
Anchorage Park Foundation: 2024 cycle 

announced; applications due 3/20/24. Up to $40,000 with 1:1 match for 
shovel ready projects. 
Alaska Community Foundation: Anchorage Trail Care Fund 2024 grant 
cycle is open; applications are due Feb 29 2024. Awards up to $2500. 
 
Social Media & Websites:  GBOS, committee and sub-committee meetings are now available 
on a calendar view. Go to www.muni.org/gbos/events and see what meetings are coming up!  
GBOS videos are on line!  Follow the link on our website to our YouTube videos or copy this: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCOUlNInprZEjhbpVPiJOlEA  

 
We are active on Facebook as Girdwood Board of Supervisors. GVSA Websites are:  
GBOS: www.muni.org/gbos 
LUC: www.muni.org/gluc 
GTC: www.muni.org/gtc 
PSAC: www.muni.org/gpsac  

Cemetery: www.muni.org/gc 
Parks and Rec:www.muni.org/gpr.   
Girdwood Trails Plan: www.muni.org/gtp

GHEC: www.muni.org/gbos-ghec  

http://www.muni.org/gbos/events
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCOUlNInprZEjhbpVPiJOlEA
http://www.muni.org/gbos
http://www.muni.org/gluc
http://www.muni.org/gtc
http://www.muni.org/gpsac
http://www.muni.org/gc
http://www.muni.org/gpr
http://www.muni.org/gtp
http://www.muni.org/gbos-ghec


 Page 3 of 4 

 
 

 
 

Links and info: 

Sen. Cathy Giessel’s weekly newsletter: Signup Form (constantcontactpages.com) 
Margo Belamy’s ASD Newsletter is on the Federation of Community council website: The 
Federation of Community Councils :: Home under the Notices tab. Sign up for the FCC 
newsletter on their signup page. 
Heritage Land Bank information: www.Muni.org/HLB 
 
 

Roads 
Road Status:  Winter conditions exist. Crews have gotten all push back done and the use of the 
snow blower has made it efficient to get done quickly.   
 

Major project updates: 
Ruane road fish passage culvert replacement. We’ve located the funding for this project along 
with AWWU funding for Girdwood improvements being managed by the EPA.  We must apply 
with the EPA to request the funds and coordinate that effort with AWWU.  The funding 
designated for the project is $1.6 million, and it will require a 20% match.  
 
Expenses and Budget: 
Undesignated Fund Balance - Girdwood Service Area: $390,542.05 as of August 16, 2023.  
 
Roads: Road Expenditures by Month: 
 Month   2021  2022  2023    
 January  $78,859.68 $81,466.17 $62,791.19  
 February  $41,023.01 $75,435.50 $32,793.17 
 March   $60,812.38 $43,523.63* $45,857.72 
 April   $89,644.88  $18,723.00 $31,161.25 
 May   $19,589.00 $68,628.00 $34,288.75 
Remaining Flood Repair    $112,529.20 
 June   $23,223.00 $1,682.40 $20,791.25 
 July   $42,976.00 $1,818.35 $173,075.00 
 August   $11,061.34 $3,500.00 $146,100.00 
 September  $16,360.00 $33,872.25 $22,991.00 
 October  $203,490.50 $105,700.00 $10,090.50 
 November  $34,908.75 $35,353.73 $55,686.25 
 December   $43,830.00__ $42,085.81______________ 
 Total thru December: $515,368.95 $696,269.27 $635,626.08 

 
Public works operation 2023 budget expended for 2023: $1,269,853.03 of $1,387,381.00 =92% 
2023 Capital Roads Project fund (406): $621,005.20 
 
Parks:  
 2023 Expended Budget: $333,059.27 of $414,869.00 = 80% 
 2023 Capital Park Project (406) Reserve Fund available: $791,380.54 
 2023 Winner Creek Trail Suspension Bridge funds = $205,925.06 
 2023 Winner Creek Trail Suspension State Grant Funds = $1,200,000 

2023 Community Room Capital Reserve Fund (406): $47,793.39 
Police:  
 2023 Expended Budget: $805,963.84 of $811,323.00 = 99% 
Fire:  
 2023 Expended Budget: $1,463,536.00 of $1,590,800.00 = 92% 

https://lp.constantcontactpages.com/su/EcWR9Vt
https://communitycouncils.org/servlet/content/1545.html
https://communitycouncils.org/servlet/content/1545.html
http://www.muni.org/HLB


 Page 4 of 4 

 2023 Fire Undesignated Capital fund (406) = $66,366.79 
 
Request: Upcoming meetings to set: 
GVSA 1st Quarter Revisions meeting  
GBOS LUC Joint meeting to review Girdwood Comprehensive Plan April 22 or 29 
GVSA 2023 Budget Year in Review 
GVSA Budget meetings 1, 2 and 3 (after GVSA elections) 



 Girdwood STR Regulation through Land Use - for discussion 

 The following notes outline a potential implementation, mostly within AMC 21.09, to regulate 
 STRs in a way that meets GBOS’ stated goals  .  This might be broadly compatible with AO 
 2023-110.  To be determined 

 Goals for Girdwood STR regulation 
 From GBOS Resolution 2023-26 

 1.  Set requirements on STRs to reduce negative impacts on immediate neighbors, provide 
 a reporting and response mechanism 

 2.  Direct any fees in excess of administrative cost, and taxes where allowed by charter, to a 
 dedicated fund to mitigate the impact of STRs on the local Girdwood housing market 

 3.  Directly or indirectly provide incentives to increase the amount of housing available for 
 long-term rentals as primary-occupancy, and 

 4.  Encourage primary-occupancy of housing in Girdwood by distinguishing between: 
 a.  use of primary-occupied residential housing for STRs (either part of the property 

 or for part of the year), and 
 b.  use of housing which is not a primary residence for STRs 

 Proposal outline 

 Goal 1 - neighborhood concerns 
 This would be met by AO 2023-110. While we haven’t seen the (S) version, it is probably going 
 to remove the occupancy limit and parking requirement, so may only partly meet goal 1 

 Goal 2 - funds for mitigation 
 Direct the following into GVSA “Housing fund”  <confirm SAP account code> 

 ●  Annual fees in excess of administrative costs for registered STRs within GVSA 
 ●  Two-thirds of the room tax generated by STRs operating within GVSA 

 ○  A 4% room tax is mandated by Anchorage Charter to fund the capital and 
 operating costs of the convention center 

 ○  Room tax is currently set at 12% of taxable use 
 ●  Annual permit fees in excess of administrative costs for registered commercial STRs 

 within GVSA 

 Goal 4 - distinguish residential use vs commercial use with additional regulation for commercial 
 use 
 Goal 3 - incentivize long-term rentals 
 Define two types of STR use into Girdwood Land Use code, a commercial use and a residential 
 accessory use. 

 ●  When housing is an occupied primary residence, ie. either owner-occupied  or 
 renter-occupied  (hence addressing Goal 3) for most of the year, units can have a 



 residential accessory STR use. (See implementation details below for dealing with 
 multiple units on a parcel.) 

 ●  Otherwise an STR would be a commercial STR use. 
 ○  A permit is required for commercial STRs, with an additional fee. 
 ○  There may be other restrictions such as a cap on the number of permits. 

 Implementation Notes 
 Use of tax, license and permit funds.  Still researching  what code changes are required for 
 directing funds for a purpose. 

 Title 14 changes for enforcement and penalties  Work in progress. 

 Title 21 changes to Girdwood Land Use code 

 a)  Commercial STR use 
 ●  Amend AMC 21.09.050 B.4 (Commercial use) 

 ○  Add paragraph for Commercial Short-Term Rental - analogous to Hostel for 
 non-occupied residential housing 

 ○  Requires a commercial STR permit in addition to license. 
 ■  [Optional] Set a maximum number of permits, adjusted annually based on 

 occupied housing supply. 
 ●  When there are more applications than permits, use a lottery. 

 ■  [Optional] ADUs can not be used as commercial STRs 

 ●  Amend Table 21.09-2: Table of Allowed Uses 
 ○  Under “Commercial section”, Use Category “Visitor Accommodations”, Use Type 

 “Commercial STR” - add “S” when there is a “P” in the same zone for either 
 “residential living, single family” or “residential living, mixed use” rows 

 b)  Accessory residential use 
 ●  Amend AMC 21.09.050 C.2 (Accessory uses) 

 ○  Add accessory use of Accessory Short-Term Rental as an accessory use of an 
 *occupied* residential unit 

 ●  Amend Table 21.09-3: Table of Accessory Uses 
 ○  Add row for Residential STRs to mirror ADU row 

 c)  Define “occupied primary residence” at the parcel level (since exemptions are per 
 parcel) 
 ●  Owner-occupancy 

 ○  Claiming the residential real property exemption (AMC 12.15.015 E.1) is 
 prima-facie  evidence of occupied primary residence 

 ○  During first year of ownership only, sworn affidavit that the occupancy conditions 
 of AMC 12.15.015 E.1 will be met 



 ●  Renter-occupancy 
 ○  Lease 50% or more of legal conforming or legal non-conforming units on the 

 parcel under one or more leases of at least 120 days duration, and 
 ○  Average length of leased period per unit is 180 days or more, and 
 ○  Property is the primary residence of tenants (analogous to real property 

 exemption) 



 
Girdwood Housing and Economic Committee  

Resolution 2023-02 
 
A resolution of Girdwood Housing and Economic Committee in response to AO 2023-110, advising GBOS to 
pursue regulatory dispensation for the Girdwood area by modification of the proposed Short Term Rental 
regulation in Title 10 and adding a zoning overlay district to Title 21, Chapter 9, that describes the entire 
Girdwood Valley, including all zoning definitions therein. 
 
Whereas: 
 

● Short Term Rentals (STR) are a necessary activity of and an integral part of a resort community like 
Girdwood 

● Girdwood Housing and Economic Committee is looking for solutions that result in mitigation of the 
impact that STR activity has on available workforce housing  

● There is approximately $13M in STR activity in Girdwood annually 
● The Anchorage Assembly is debating implementing Municipal wide regulations for Short Term Rentals 

in the proposed AO 2023-110 
● The Girdwood STR market is substantially different than that of the city of Anchorage 
● The goals of the Anchorage Assembly for STR regulations do not address the needs or goals of 

Girdwood 
● Girdwood has a low primary occupancy rate, with 25% of the residential properties used as primary 

residence and 75% non-primary residence used as STR or left vacant 
● The proposed Municipal STR regulations will be detrimental to Girdwood if implemented as written 
● It has already been suggested by the proposing Assembly members that the Municipal STR regulations 

be applied differently to Girdwood because of the unique STR market and realities of being a resort 
town 

● There are 29 zoning districts defined for Girdwood in Title 21, Chapter 9 
● The Municipality of Anchorage allows a path to define a zoning overlay within the Girdwood district, as 

defined in AMC 21.03.160.H 
 
Therefore let it be resolved that GHEC advises GBOS to fully pursue the implementation of the following 
mechanisms to ensure continuation of Girdwood’s economic activity while addressing the impacts of STRs on 
workforce housing: 
 

1. Work with the Assembly to modify AO 2023-110 to describe in the Title 10 language, a special “carve-
out” designation where Girdwood defines service area specific regulations, fees, and other aspects of 
STR regulation and activity that is structured to meet local service area needs and stated goals of 
GBOS; 

a. Method to deal with impact on the neighbors (noise, people, parking) 
b. Incentivize long term rental 
c. Mechanism to provide funds to be used to relieve workforce housing crisis in Girdwood 
d. It is specifically noted that the goal is NOT to make hurdles for residents using property for Short 

Term Rental 
2. A zoning change under AMC 21.03.160 that would describe the entire Girdwood valley, as defined in 

AMC 21.09.020.E, with a zoning overlay district. This action may be initiated by the Assembly, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission, or the Administration, by a request from GBOS. 

a. Use the Girdwood zoning overlay district to define general area-wide provisions that describe 
use, such as STRs and ADUs. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DC8CA68-B089-43FE-844A-018C894374E1



b. Describe other general design standard deviations from Title 21 requirements for development 
in Girdwood; building height, streets, sidewalks, lighting. 

c. Define allowed, seasonal, and temporary gravel borrow operations as a unique land use activity 
within the zoning overlay district 

d. Describe the area’s unique characteristics that are to be maintained, land use that is to be 
encouraged, and development that is suited for the local area 

3. Prepare to fund a part-time service area employee authorization or to contract with the Municipality to 
administer the STR registrations and/or other housing service area incentive programs. 

 
Passed and approved by GHEC by a vote of 5 of 0 on this 27th day of December 2023. 
 
 
 
Brett Wilbanks, GHEC Chair 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DC8CA68-B089-43FE-844A-018C894374E1



Girdwood Housing and Economic Committee  
Resolution 2023-03 

 
A resolution requesting that GBOS recover a portion of the 12% bed tax generated by this activity and remitted 
to the city of Anchorage, while being conducted within the Girdwood district, specifically within the Girdwood 
Housing Service Area.  
 
Whereas: 
 

● Short Term Rentals (STR) are a necessary activity of and an integral part of a resort community, such 
as Girdwood 

● Many resort communities are also challenged with balancing STR activity and the impact on housing 
units available for Long Term Rental (LTR) 

● The STR “bed tax” is currently allocated as 33% to capital project debt payments, 33% to Visit 
Anchorage tourism marketing, and 33% to the municipal general fund 

● Annual gross bed tax revenue generated from Girdwood that is paid into Anchorage treasury is 
approximately $3M 

● Girdwood Housing and Economic Committee is looking for solutions that result in mitigation of the 
impact that STR activity has on available workforce housing  

 
Therefore let it be resolved that GHEC advises GBOS to request 66% of the annual bed tax that is generated 
from Girdwood be returned to the Girdwood Housing and Economic Stability service area for mitigation of the 
impacts that STR activity has on workforce housing. The use of these funds may include the following 
initiatives or programs: 
 

1. STR to LTR incentives to effect market availability of additional LTR units 
2. Property tax offsets for LTR use as affordable workforce housing 
3. Attaining below market-rate rental units for workforce housing, either through partnership developments 

by leveraging bonding or partnership agreements as an operation 
4. Administration and development of these and similar programs and initiatives that increase both the 

availability and affordability of housing in general, and workforce housing specifically, in Girdwood 
 
Passed and approved by GHEC by a vote of 5 of 0 on this 27th day of December 2023. 
 
 
 
Brett Wilbanks, GHEC Chair 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DC8CA68-B089-43FE-844A-018C894374E1



Temporary Workforce 
Housing Proposal

Girdwood Land Use Committee – January 8th 2024



Purpose

• Not enough available and affordable housing for working residents
• Local businesses struggle with recruitment and retention of employees

• Permanent workforce housing requires new construction – 2-3 years 
away at best 

• Let local businesses be part of the solution
• But current Land Use code puts many restrictions in the way

• Provide a temporary measure to allow flexible housing on 
commercially zoned land

• Buys time for new construction and maybe new land use code



Process

• Concrete proposal to spur discussion about details
• Gather feedback and concerns

• But Girdwood can’t change code
• Next steps:

• Develop specific code changes based on feedback
• Assembly public process

• Community & Economic Development Committee meeting(s)
• May need review through Planning & Zoning Commission
• Possible work session
• GBOS (and LUC) review and comments
• Public Hearing



Requirements

• Temporarily removes existing restrictions on housing within commercial 
zones

• Allows much lower-cost solutions:
• temporary (non-foundation) structures
• tiny homes
• modular homes etc.

• Must be used as affordable* housing for residents – can’t be visitor 
accommodation / second homes

• *Cost-limits based on standard Federal definitions
• Administrative site review

• Provides notice requirements
• Allows written public comments, but no public hearing 



Some Questions

• Locations and scope
• Excludes Town Square & Resort areas
• Allows RVs as well as tiny homes / trailers

• Requirement for safe housing
• Construction options
• Sanitary options
• Address for emergency services

• Enforcement
• Affidavit at application
• Use existing complaint-based land use enforcement



Holtan Hills Status

A brief history of the key steps in the Holtan Hills project

RFP and development agreement

06-Apr-2021 RFP for “Girdwood Residential 2021” issued by HLB

07-Jun-2021 RFP response deadline - 2 proposals received by HLB

29-Jun-2021 Proposal from Pomeroy Partnership (CY Investments, Seth Anderson & Pomeroy
Property Development Ltd) accepted

02-Jul-2021 Redacted version of successful Pomeroy Partnership proposal published

06-Apr-2022 CY Investments and Pomeroy Property Development separate via bifurcation
agreement

29-Apr-2022 Development agreement signed between HLB and CY Investments

23-May-2022 Development agreement made public

28-Jun-2023 Bifurcation agreement between CY Investments and Pomeroy Property
Development released to public

18-Jul-2023 Original proposal concept map released to public

Girdwood involvement

16-Aug-2021 GBOS Resolution 2021-18 requesting attainable housing to be included in the
Holtan Hills development

22-Dec-2021 Community Presentation by CY Investments and HLB on Holtan Hills project

22-Jun-2022 Letter from GBOS to HLB expressing four major areas of concern with the Holtan
Hills project

12-Jul-2022 Holtan Hills Housing Advisory Committee (HHHAC) kick off meeting

18-Jul-2022 GBOS Resolution 2022-14 requesting amendment to Holtan Hills development
agreement to meet community housing needs

14-Sep-2022 Letter from HHHAC to HLB with 8 specific recommendations for changes to
project

11-Oct-2022 Partial response from HLB to HHHAC recommendations

24-Oct-2022 HHHAC status report to GBOS

https://www.muni.org/Departments/hlb/2014%20Docs/RFP%20Girdwood%20Residential%202021.pdf
https://www.muni.org/Departments/operations/streets/Service/GBOS/HoltanHills_DevelopmentAgreement.pdf
https://www.muni.org/Departments/operations/streets/Service/GBOS/Holtan%20Hills%20Bifurcation%20Agreement.pdf
https://www.muni.org/Departments/operations/streets/Service/GBOS/Site%20Concept%20Map.pdf
https://www.muni.org/Departments/operations/streets/Service/GBOS/2021-18%20Attainable%20Housing%20in%20HLB%20Disposal%20Agreement.pdf
https://www.muni.org/Departments/hlb/HLBDocument/CUP_PUD_AMP%20Community%20Meeting-20211222_184530-Meeting%20Recording%20%281%29.mp4
https://www.muni.org/Departments/operations/streets/Service/GBOS/GBOS%20RE%20Holtan%20Hills.pdf
https://www.muni.org/Departments/operations/streets/Service/GBOS/2022-14%20Holtan%20Hills.pdf
https://www.muni.org/Departments/operations/streets/Service/GBOS/HHHAC%20Letter%20RE%20Holtan%20Hills%20Project%209.22.pdf
https://www.muni.org/Departments/operations/streets/Service/GBOS/ADD%20Trombley%20response%20to%20HHHAC%20request.pdf
https://www.muni.org/Departments/operations/streets/Service/GBOS/Holtan%20Hills%20Advisory%20Committee%20Letter%20final.pdf


24-Oct-2022 GBOS Resolution 2023-23: requesting revocation or amendment of Holtan Hills
development agreement to meet Girdwood’s community housing needs

29-Nov-2022 GBOS Letter of Objection to Holtan Hills land disposal under the April 29, 2022
Development Agreement

06-Feb-2023 GBOS Resolution 2023-04: Holtan Hills Land Disposal Rejection

Assembly Ordinances
At the November 9, 2022 Assembly Meeting, the administration introduced an Assembly
Ordinance, AO 2022-103, to dispose of HLB land for the Holtan Hills development.
Over the following 3 months, additional versions of the disposal ordinance were introduced, with
an eventual motion to move AO 2022-103(S-2) and a vote to indefinitely postpone action.

The table below shows an analysis of the four versions of this ordinance:

https://www.muni.org/Departments/operations/streets/Service/GBOS/2022-23%20Amendment%20or%20revocation%20of%20Holtan%20Hills%20Development%20Agreement%20-%20Copy.pdf
https://www.muni.org/Departments/operations/streets/Service/GBOS/LOO%20Holtan%20Hills%20Land%20Disposal%20under%20Development%20Agreement.pdf
https://www.muni.org/Departments/operations/streets/Service/GBOS/2023-04%20Holtan%20Hills%20Rejection.pdf


Ordinance AO 2022-103 AO 2022-103(S) AO 2022-103(S-1) AO 2022-103(S-2)

Introduced 9-Nov 2022 6-Dec 2022 20-Dec 2022 7-Feb 2023

Author HLB HLB Zalatel Zalatel

Specify the acreage of each
phase of development

None None None WHEREAS “disposal over three
phases is for 16.1 acres for Phase
1, 17.1 acres for Phase 2, and 27.2
acres for Phase III, for a total of
60.4 acres of portions of HLB
Parcels 6-011, 6-016, and 6-017”

Produce housing None None WHEREAS “with the
intent to provide
housing”

Same as AO 2022-103(S-1)

Mixture of housing types and
densities

Potentially, via a
WHEREAS
“intended to take the
form of a Planned Unit
Development, affording
the development a [sic]
mixed-density model”

Same as AO 2022-103 PUD must increase
density beyond that
allowed by gR-3

CUP for a PUD “must request
approval to exceed the allowable
density of gR-3”

Lower cost workforce housing
for rental

None None Mentioned in
WHEREAS clause, but
with no commitments

Same as AO 2022-103(S-1)

Housing affordable at 120%
AMI for purchase

None None Mentioned in
WHEREAS clause, but
with no commitments

Same as AO 2022-103(S-1)



Transfer lot(s) to Girdwood
entity for development as
workforce housing

None One lot if
a) HLB profits allow
b) Girdwood Housing
Authority is established
within 5 years

At least one lot for at
least 8 units and
transferred to housing
trust or non-profit
entity

Same as AO 2022-103(S-1)

Restrictions on Short-Term
Rentals

None Via HOA, no STR in
Phase I, “until such
time that the
Municipality adopts an
ordinance otherwise
regulating short-term
rentals”

Same as AO
2022-103(S) except
allow STR use of
ADUs and any change
to this clause in HOA
rules requires
unanimous vote

Same as AO 2022-103(S-1)

Increase proportion of primary
residences in Girdwood, e.g.
through deed restriction

None None WHEREAS “the
development of
housing that is at least
50% occupied as
primary residences
whether owner-
occupied or leased on
a five-month to yearly
basis should be
prioritized”

“Section 4. The
Municipality’s intent for
this development in all
phases, is to provide
community housing
opportunities
attainable for
year-round residents
of Girdwood.”

Same as AO 2022-103(S-1)



Conform to principles of
updated 2024 Girdwood
Comprehensive Plan

None None WHEREAS “HLB’s
Work Plan … should
be developed
concurrently and in
coordination with the
Girdwood Area Plan
that is also underway
specifically in
addressing housing,
commercial and
infrastructure needs
for the community”

Same as AO 2022-103(S-1)

Crow Creek Road access? Development agreement
6.5: construct in phase 2,
with all improvements to
Crow Creek Road paid
by MOA.

Same Same plus
“Section 5. HLB, in
consultation with
GBOS or a committee
it designates, shall
work to identify and
apply for available
State and Federal
funding to develop a
secondary access on
Crow Creek Road to
the Holtan Hills
development.”

Same but “shall work to identify [and
apply for] available State and
Federal funding”

Submit all planning
entitlements to GBOS for
review

None “...submit applications
for land use
entitlements to GBOS
for review prior to
seeking official action”

Same as AO
2022-103(S-1)

Same as AO 2022-103(S-1)

Transfer funds for affordable
housing

None None None None



Third party representative… None None “Section 2. Within 45
days of passage of
this ordinance, HLB
and GBOS shall
identify and mutually
agree on engagement
of a third party to liaise
between HLB and the
Girdwood community
until such time as HLB
has a newly appointed
and confirmed HLB
director that has been
in the position for at
least six months.”

Same as AO 2022-103(S-1)



Actions after indefinite postponement of AO 2022-103(S-2)

1. In February, the Assembly passed AR 2023-40 HLB to identify suitable parcels to
dispose of to a Girdwood non-profit entity for the purpose of increasing attainable
housing for year-round residents in Girdwood.

2. In May, the Assembly passed AR 2023-165 to fund the hiring of a real estate consultant
for Heritage Land Bank’s interest in the Holtan Hills development

a. An initial RFP was issued in September as 2023 P051 “HLB Holtan Hills
Feasibility Study” but received no bids

b. A second RFP was recently prepared. As of 19th January 2024, this RFP has not
yet been issued, but is anticipated to be released later in January.

3. In December, the Assembly passed AR 2023-433, their Housing Action Plan. This Plan
has five goals:

In its current form, the Holtan Hills project can be evaluated against these goals

Rating Comments

Goal 1 ❔ might meet goal 1, although the project does not guarantee any
housing will be constructed

Goal 2 ❌ unlikely to meet this goal, based on recently constructed market
housing in Girdwood

Goal 3 ❌ will not meet this goal. almost all recent housing has been second
homes and/or STRs - HH has no mechanism to encourage
occupied housing

Goal 4 ❔ unlikely to meet this goal - proposal offers limited control over
housing type, but details will be in Planned Unit Development

Goal 5 ✅ likely to be met, but at the cost of critically needed community
housing

https://purchasing.muni.org/Web%20E-Bid/Closed/rfp/2023P051%20HLB%20Holtan%20Hills%20Feasibility%20Study/Proposal%20Document/2023%20RFP%20Holtan%20Hills%20Feasibility%20Study%20Signed%20.pdf
https://purchasing.muni.org/Web%20E-Bid/Closed/rfp/2023P051%20HLB%20Holtan%20Hills%20Feasibility%20Study/Proposal%20Document/2023%20RFP%20Holtan%20Hills%20Feasibility%20Study%20Signed%20.pdf


4. At the 19th December 2023 Assembly meeting, AO 2023-137 was introduced,
authorizing HLB to dispose of the Holtan Hills lands.
AO 2023-137 is essentially identical to AO 2022-103(S-2) although the dates have been
updated for the current HLB work plan.



Municipality
of

Anchorage

P.O Box 390
Girdwood, Alaska 99587
httti'.IJwww.mum.orsl sb os

David Bronson, Mayor

^-s-\

/

^

GIRDWOOD VALLEY SERVICE AREA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
Mike Edgington and Briana Sullivan, Co-Chairs

Jennifer Wingard, Amanda Sassi, Guy Wade

Resolution 2023-04
Of the Girdwood Board of Supervisors

RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING ASSEMBLY REJECTION OF THE LAND
DISPOSAL OF PORTIONS OF HERITAGE LAND BANK PARCELS 6-011, 6-016 AND

6-017, KNOWN AS HOLTAN HILLS, AS DESCRIBED IN AO 2022-103(8-2)

WHEREAS, in April 2022 HLB and CY Investments entered into a Development Agreement for joint development of the parcels 6-
Oil, 6-016 and 6-017, known as the Holtan Hills project; and

WHEREAS the GBOS and the community of Girdwood appreciate the extensive work that has gone into the S-l and S-2 versions of
the Ordinance, the acknowledgement ofGirdwood's housing crisis, the recognition that HLB should assess "value" to the
Municipality beyond fmancial return, and the inclusion of other statements helpful m establishing a formal record of the Girdwood
community's longer-term goals for housing development; and

WHEREAS, the proposed development is based on a Girdwood Area Plan from 1995 and also the 2006 Crow Creek Neighborhood
Land Use Plan, both of which are significantly outdated and neither one of which sufficiently address Girdwood's current housmg
crisis; and

WHEREAS, the Girdwood Area Plan is currently being updated as the Girdwood Comprehensive Plan, with final draft anticipated in
early Fall 2023; and the updated plan will address housing as one of four priority areas representing the vision and values of the
community; and

WHEREAS, the publicly available financial information and projections for the Holtan Hills project are limited and incomplete,
requested updated fmancial mformation has not been provided by HLB, and the relatively low land appraisal compared to other
undeveloped Girdwood Valley land has not been adequately justified; and

WHEREAS, despite multiple requests from the Girdwood Board of Supervisors (GBOS) and others, major questions remain
unanswered by HLB about the process leading up to and following the signing of the development agreement, mcludmg: 1) the ability
ofHLB to enter intojomt ventaires when not included in statute; 2) full financial picture consisting offmancials for Phase 3, as well as
income statements, balance sheets and cash flow statements inclusive of estimates of offsite improvements (and thus the value of CY
Investment's sole source project management fee); 3) debt financing mcluding potential risks for HLB and the Municipality of
Anchorage; 4) the change in development partners between the awarding of the RFP and development agreement; 5) consideration of
alternatives to the chosen development structure; 6) determination that the 2006 Crow Creek Neighborhood Land Use Plan satisfied
the code requkement for a project-specific Area Master Plan although the legal determination was withheld; and



WHEREAS, GBOS' previous Resolutions 2022-14 and 2022-23, June 22, 2022 Letter to MOA/HLB and Letter of Objection to AO 
2022-103 & AO 2022-103(S) have clearly stated that the project in its current form is not accepted by the Girdwood community; and 

WHEREAS, based on the limited financial information provided, there is scant evidence that HLB conducted an appropriate level of 

financial due diligence to determine if the project represents a sound investment of Municipal resources, and potentially exposes the 
Municipality to substantial financial liabilities; and 

WHEREAS, no version of the disposal ordinance guarantees that housing is produced through this land disposal, nor that a substantial 
proportion of dwellings will be occupied by residents of the community, nor that the housing needs of Girdwood are met in any 
substantive way; and 

WHEREAS, after selection of the winning proposal, GBOS passed Resolution 2021-18, in August 2021 urging HLB to prioritize the 

need for community housing in Girdwood that was attainable and affordable to the working population of the community; and 

WHEREAS, after the development agreement was made publicly available in May 2022, GBOS engaged with the developer and 
HLB, forming the Holtan Hills Housing Advisory Committee (HHHAC) to summarize Girdwood's concerns, develop a short-list of 
actionable changes to the project and present them to HLB and the developer; and 

WHEREAS, HLB submitted the original AO 2022-103 on November 8, 2022 with no acknowledgement of the community concerns 
nor response to any changes requested by GBOS based on work by HHHAC; and 

WHEREAS, through community meetings, joint meetings with the Girdwood Land Use Committee, and three Assembly Work 
Sessions, the Girdwood Board of Supervisors has determined that the Holtan Hills project, as originally proposed and under the 
conditions of AO 2022-103(S-2), devotes public lands to a project which does not provide adequate benefit to Girdwood's need for 
community housing, nor represents adequate financial return to the citizens of Anchorage; and 

THEREFORE GBOS urges Assembly members to reject the Holtan Hills land disposal. 

THEREFORE FURTHER, GBOS requests that any future disposal of these HLB lands requires 
a project-specific Area Master Plan completed before any development commences. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of 5 to O this 6th day of February 2023. 

Briana Sullivan 
GBOS Co-chair 

G/ tJ'� 
Guy Wade 

Jennifer Wingard 

Amanda Sassi 



GHEC  

Review Holtan Hills proposed Assembly Ordinance 

Assembly Ordinance was introduced at the Dec 19 meeting. It is to be discussed on Jan 23. S 

amendment is expected, however Ordinance currently is substantively similar to AO that was 

postponed indefinitely by the Assembly in 2023. 

Group discuses that value may be greater in disposal of other parcels for Workforce Housing than 

effort to change the agreement to include more workforce housing in this project. 

 

Motion: 

GHEC moves to request that GBOS recommend that AO 2023-137 is amended to add specifically the 

exact acreage to be disposed of in each of the phases. 

Motion by Krystal Hoke/2nd Erin Eker 

Motion carries by Assent Vote 

 

Motion: 

GHEC moves to request that 6.5 acres of parcel 6-016 are subdivided into its own lot at the same time 

that Holtan Hills platting is finalized. 

Motion by Krystal Hoke/2nd Erin Eker 

Motion carries by Assent vote 

 

Motion: 

GHEC moves to request that the two HHHAC letters and the GBOS Resolution rejecting the prior 

disposal are forwarded on to the Assembly as a statement of effort of the HHHAC and the position of 

the community to the Anchorage Assembly in consideration of this disposal. 

Motion by Krystal Hoke/2nd Brooke Lavender 

Motion carries by Assent vote 

 

 



DATE: September 14, 2022 

TO:  Adam Trombley: Adam.Trombley@anchorageak.gov 
Connie Yoshimura, CY Investments: cyoshimura@gci.net 

CC:  Heritage Land Bank and HLBAC Commissioners: hlb@anchorageak.gov 
 Girdwood Board of Supervisors: gbos@muni.org 

FR: Holtan Hills Housing Advisory Committee, Sam Daniel and Emma Kramer, Co-chairs 

Introduction 
Girdwood is experiencing an ongoing housing crisis. Every resident and business owner is 
acutely aware of the lack of housing and the incredible challenges posed by the cost of housing. 
This reality is known and acknowledged in the HLB Girdwood Residential 2021 RFP 
(Attachment A, page 8 Section 3). The winning proposal, submitted by CY Investments, LLC, 
Pomeroy Lodging, and Seth Anderson PE. (Attachment B, p.20;4.5.1 Business Plan) indicates 
awareness of Girdwood’s housing crisis and an intent to create “workforce housing, affordable 
housing, moderately priced single family homes with ADUs, luxury 50,000 square foot 
lots as well as cottages and ‘bird’ houses” (ibid). The Girdwood community is concerned that the 
Development Agreement (Attachment C) between CY Investments and MOA HLB addresses 
creation of lots only, without the specific guarantee of creation of the housing Girdwood needs. 

In July an informal survey of Girdwood renters was conducted online via social media platforms. 
The 133 responses reveal many of the struggles our community faces with housing: 

● 73% responded that their rent is over 30% of their income. 
● 56% have stayed in unsafe living conditions. 
● 36% have experienced homelessness while living in Girdwood. 
● 69% have lived in housing that is not up to code. 
● 21% have had to take out a loan to pay rent. 
● 87% have considered moving out of Girdwood because of the lack of housing. 
● 78% work more than 40 hours per week to afford rent. 

Following a series of community meetings, widespread written input from community members 
and business owners, and at the suggestion of Connie Yoshimura, the Holtan Hills Housing 
Advisory Committee was formed by the GBOS to coalesce the community’s concerns and work 
toward an agreement with CY Investments and HLB. This letter is the product of their work. 

Goals 
After deep listening to our community, our goals are to work collaboratively and use inclusionary 
housing concepts to: 

A. Increase the supply of workforce and mid-income housing; 
B. Increase the affordability of housing in Girdwood; 
C. Increase the amount of housing occupied by Girdwood residents; and, 
D. Limit the use of new housing as short term rental property. 

Recommended Revisions to the Development Agreement. 

1

mailto:Adam.Trombley@anchorageak.gov
mailto:cyoshimura@gci.net
mailto:hlb@anchorageak.gov
mailto:gbos@muni.org


1. Add language from the RFP (Attachment A) and the winning proposal (Attachment B) to 
the Development Agreement as a binding commitment that: 

a. CY Master Plan/Plat/etc. shall “promote employment stability” within Girdwood.  
(Attachment A: p. 8).  

b. CY Master Plan shall identify which of the lots / potential housing units in Phase 
1 and Phase 2 will be affordable housing, senior housing, workforce housing, 
market rate housing, multi-generational housing, seasonal workforce apartments, 
residential homes with ADU’s, and “bird” houses / compact houses  (Attachment 
A: p.11; Attachment B: p.2, 20, 24, 30). 

2. Add specific requirements (Attachment B: p.12) for consultation with: 
a. Girdwood Board of Supervisors/ Girdwood Land Use Committee 
b. Girdwood Community Land Trust 
c. Imagine Girdwood 
d. Girdwood Trails Committee 

3. Restructure HLB Profit Sharing through a combination of deed restrictions on Phase 1 
and 2 lots to use of property as primary places of residence; and land transferred from 
Phase 1 and 2 to be deeded to a specified Girdwood nonprofit entity for the purpose of 
constructing inclusionary housing. 

4. Increase density and/or increase number of multifamily lots in Phases 1 and 2.  

5. Add deed restrictions on Phase 1 and Phase 2 to limit the use of properties as short 
term rentals. 

6. Seed funding for creation and initial operation of Girdwood managed housing authority/
housing strategies 
Upon the disposal of land to CY Investments, an initial investment of $500,000 shall be 
designated by HLB and treated as encumbered funds to support creation and operation 
of a management body or contracting with an existing entity to implement inclusionary 
housing strategies within the Girdwood Valley Service Area in a manner similar to 
housing authorities in other resort communities. 

7. Deadline for Construction of Housing 
HLB shall create a requirement for construction of a specified number of housing units in 
a set period of time. 

8. Increase transparency 
Prior to land disposal, HLB provide the following: 

a. Unredacted copy of the winning proposal by CY Investments, Seth Anderson, 
PE, and Pomeroy Lodging to the public;  

b. Initial project budget as required in the signed Development Agreement 
(Attachment C: p. 6, section 3.7). 

c. Written update on the status of the residual rights of the other 3 original partners 
in the winning proposal. 

2



HLB and CY shall provide a communication calendar for the Holtan Hills development to 
the entities named in Item #2 above. 

Encl: 
Attachment A: HLB RFP 
Attachment B: CY et al proposal 
Attachment C: Development Agreement 

3





���

��������	
����
�
����� ����
������
	����
���
��
	������������������������������������������
��������������	
�����
������� �� !"#$��%&'�()*')*�+,�*&'�-'./'0*�,+1�21+3+045�6-728�(0�*+�9':'5+3�4�3+1*(+)�+,�*&1''�341;'50�;/11')*5<�()�*&'�='1(*4>'�?4)9�@4)A�():')*+1<�5+;4*'9�()�B(19C++9�D540A4E�5'>455<�9'0;1(F'9�40�%14;*�G�D5<'0A4�H/F9(:(0(+)�21();'�D99(*(+)�6254*�IJK�L�8�62GM�NJOKL��KNP8E�%14;*�@�B(19C++9�Q5'R')*41<�H;&++5�H/F9(:(0(+)�6254*�IOKLI8�62GM�NJOKNL�KLS8E�4)9�%14;*�TD�H';*(+)�T�%�NU�-SQ�6254*�JLKSSN8�62GM�NJOKNP�KL�8�()�4�R4))'1�*&4*�(0�;+)0(0*')*�C(*&�*&'�>+450�+,�*&'�B(19C++9�D1'4�254)�4)9�*&'�V1+C�V1''A�U'(>&F+1&++9�?4)9�W0'�H*/9<�6254)08�4)9�C&(;&�31+:(9'0�*&'�&(>&'0*�4)9�F'0*�/0'�+,�*&'�0(*'X����Y� �Z[\] "�̂_��%&'�0/F̀';*�341;'50�41'�;/11')*5<�:4;4)*X�%&'�a/)(;(345(*<�+,�D);&+14>'�6a/)(;(345(*<8�9'0(1'0�*+�9':'5+3�4�3+1*(+)�+,�*&'0'�341;'50�,+1�1'0(9')*(45�3/13+0'0X�%&4*�3+1*(+)�*+�F'�31+3+0'9�,+1�9':'5+3R')*�0&455�F'�9'0;1(F'9�F<�*&'�9':'5+3'1�4)9�R4<�();5/9'�/3�*+��ON�4;1'0�+,�*&'�0/F̀';*�341;'50E�();5/9()>�54)90�b+)'9�B-H%KSE�B-KLE�B-KOE�BG2�4)9�BcHX�� %&'�a/)(;(345(*<E�4;*()>�*&1+/>&�*&'�-'45�Q0*4*'�M'341*R')*E�(0�/*(5(b()>�4�-'./'0*�,+1�21+3+045�31+;'00�*+�0+5(;(*�9':'5+3'1�()*'1'0*�()�31+:(9()>�1'0(9')*(45�9':'5+3R')*�6(X'X�0()>5'�,4R(5<E�R/5*(K,4R(5<E�'*;X8�;+)0(0*')*�C(*&�*&'�>+450�+,�*&'�254)0X��%&'�()*')*�+,�*&'�-72�(0�*+�');+/14>'�;1'4*(:(*<�()�&+C�1'03+)9')*0�'):(0(+)�9':'5+3R')*�+,�*&'�341;'50X��21+3+0450�C(55�F'�':45/4*'9�F40'9�+)�9'R+)0*14*(+)0�+,�&(>&'0*�4)9�F'0*�/0'�+,�*&'�4:4(54F5'�9':'5+34F5'�4;1'4>'E�0/F̀';*�*+�4;;'3*4F(5(*<�F<�*&'�a/)(;(345(*<�61','1�*+�H';*(+)�L8X��21','1');'�C(55�F'�>(:')�*+�31+3+0450�*&4*�();5/9'�4�R(d�+,�&+/0()>�*<3'0X��Q:45/4*(+)0�C(55�,+;/0�+)�*&'�0*1')>*&0�+,�9':'5+3R')*�354)0E�9':'5+3R')*�*'4R0E�4)9�3/F5(;�F')',(*�+,�*&'�31+3+0'9�9':'5+3R')*�+,�*&'�31+3'1*<X����e� ��$#fg"̂#��D)<�./'0*(+)0�1'>419()>�*&(0�31+3+045�41'�*+�F'�0/FR(**'9�*+h���



���

������	
���������� � � � �	�
������������������������������� �!�"#�� � � ������������������� �!�"#�$#���%&���#�'#��!�(#��� � � � $#���%&���#�'#��!�(#���)*++�%�(�!#�$��,-���,�����!� � � ./0/�1�2�34556+���� �!�"#-��7�446+*� � � � ��� �!�"#-��7�446348556+��� 94+*:�;);8*6;5�. ��#�94+*:�;);8*6;6�<��&�(��#�$�=��/>�!,?��� �!�"#�@/"�A��B��#C�����&��"�%8(������#�&#��,#������� #��!�D#������� #�&�=D#������#��&�EF�!,G��,�$#&�,#�������+�3H/��%8(�����&�� #��!#�#!!#,�(#� �,���!�I�#&�����&�=(�&&���/��0����#� ��!&������#!�������!#�=���������(#�������C�JC++��/(/����6C++��/(/���������(#����,���� !��" �K �!&,��-�JC++��/(/����)C;+��/(/����<!�,��&-���,����&#,����(��������� ���,��&/������I�#&����&�!#"�!,��"�� #�&���#����G�!@�(�&��=#�!#�#�A#,��!��!����� #�,#�,���#���,����#,����� #�$<.���A#!��#��#!/���LMN� OPQRSTUVWP������!#&���,#��&��!#�&�!��"���#����!�"#,����� �&���������&�#���� #�#2�&���"��!��#!�����,��(�!�A#(#��&/��K #���������������&&�(#&����!#&���&�=��������!�� #�,�&���&�!#����(���#!&�G �� �G���,����� �A#�=##��,�&���&#,�=�������&�#���������� #��!��#!��/��LMX� YZSR[Z[UVWP�\WQUQ���K #��������������& ��������=#�!#&���&�=�#���!��!���&����!#��!��������&�&-���!���!�������&�&-������,��"�����!�#���##&-��&&�����#,�G�� ������,(���&�!���A#-�D�,�������!��� #!�� ���#�"#����� #�,#�#!(������������ #��!���&��&/��1��&�=(�����"����!���&��-�#�� �!#&���,#����"!##&����=#�=���,����� �&�!#&�#�����,�G��A#&���������(&����&�� ���&�&���,]�!��##&/��_̂\̀ Oab�cd�efg_̂ �hai_ebObh�\ajY_̀ ÒOab��cML� _k[lVP[UVWP�Wm�enY�YZWRWQ[o���$#&���,#��&�& ���,���!#������#2�(��#�� #�#���!#�$<.-������,,#�,��� #!#��-���,�����!#���#,�(��#!���&���,�,����!#�#!#��#,����� #�$<./��$#&���,#��&�& ���,�=#��(#��������G�!#����� #�����!#����� #��!���&#,��!��&���������,�� #����,�����&���@#������=#�#������#!#,�����#!��!(��"�� #��!��&������&/��cMc� YZWRWQ[o�pTTSRU[PTS�YSZVWq��



���

�������	
�	���������������	
��
�������
�����������	�����

	
���������
�����������������
��������������	�������	��������������	��������
�������	�������	��	
���
��������
���������������	��	��
�������������	
����� �����!"#� $%&'()*&+(,-(+.��� /����	
��
��	����	�	�������������0�����	
����
�����
���������������	
�	�������������������	
��
��������������������

	
�����
���
����������������
������������
�� ��1�������������������	�	���������	��
��	�������������� ��2	�������������
�
������
�	�����	
����������������
	���������������	��	�����
������	
��
���	������������
�������
�����	�����������	���
���������
������������	
�� � ����������
��

	
��� ��3��������	
��
����������������
�
������
�	�����	
��	������
�4�	
����
����5��	��������6�����������789���	��������������	
��
�����������������
�����������������0�
�������������������4�	
����
�����	����	��������6������5�������
� ��7���	
��
����������������������	����������
�	�����	
�������������������	�4���	����	���
��
����
��	��	���������
��������������������������������	�����	��������	��������������
������	��
��	���������	
��
�������
���������	���������������������6��
��4��	����������
�	�����	
�����������
����������	
����
��	����	����������	
��������������	����0���������������	���	
����
������	���	�����������	�������
��������	������	
����	����
�������
�	�����	
�	�������6�
����1
��	�����:
�������;	����1:;���������	
��� <� �=�8��
��>�������������� ��1�����	
��
��������	��������������
�����	���
��������������	�����
���
�
��������
�
������
�	�����	
����4�	
����
����5��	���������6��
���	������	������������������	����	
��	��1:;�	���
�����	�� ��/����������������������������	���������	
��
�?���������	
��
����	
����	���	����	
 ��3
��������
�����������7����@������A�������
��A�����	���������
��������������
�
������
�	�����	
����0��������������	
��
�����4�	
����
����5��	��������6��	���
	���	����������������	����	
��	��1:;����������	
��
����������
	����������	���	��������	
�	��������
�
������
�	�����	
 ��/�������	
��
�������������	�����	���������������
�	�����	
 ��3����������	
��
���	���
	����������������
�	�����	
�����������������������������������
	
B�	
����
������
�	�����	
 ��3
��������
��������
�	�����	
�����������
����	����	������	���������
���������������������
���
����
�����������	������7����@������A�������
���
������������������	���
���
��������������������
	�������C�����	������������	����D�����������
��	������������789���	�����
�����	�������������	���	���	�����
��C��������	
 ��E	��������
��
�������	���	�
���������
����������������������������	������	���������
�
������
�	�����	
��	
�����
����������������5�	
�������������
���	
����	
������	�����������1
��	�����1������� ��



���

���� ���	�
�������������������������������������������������� �!����������"�����������#��$�� ���%����������������������$���������������&�����������������������$!�������'����(������$������)*�+��,(�������������������������������������$���� ��#-�� ����.�/��$��(������������)*��������������0�����������)�������"�������������)*����'����(����0���������1�/�(��������������������!��$��������+����2� 3456��7�8�98:74�8�86�
���;�������������(���������#���+��;����������(�!������#�����!�����$$���������������#�����$��������������%��$��������<��������#������������������������$0���#����������������$��������������0�(���#����$����==/0������ �����$������"����!>� ����"�����0�����������#�����$��������!��������<����!����� ����$��������!�����'��"����������(���+���?�#��������������@=�������$�A����(�����B� ����(�����������'����(����C?��������+D+DE+��A�����(�������������$���������"�����C�E���#���#��������������(�������������!���� ���((�������!����� �������#������+���FGHIJKL�MN�OHPQ�MRL�SKNTNOGI�HO�PKNJQUO�VNK�KLWLXMHNQY����Z� ���	�
���37[�4

4�6���\]̂ �\9_̀_]abc�
465�8�
4d8d�76[�76dc�	�7
�e4f8�g2h�i��	�8�8�i�	48
��$��������������(������������"����!�����j����������!�������������������������(�������$�������������"���������+��/������(�!�������������������������$������k���������������������������������+���_]�all_m_\]�����n8�i�	48
��8:74�8d��[�f8c����l�i�	o��e��n8�i��	�8�8�	��	�
��c�46i�7d465�����in�86�
c�
n����[8�	��f4d8d��6���p3q�e��
n�d�4f8�����;�����������$���������������������������(��������������#������������"��� ���������������������!�(��r��������)�'�����$������������)�������� �������������%�@̀4�ds��d�98
4d86�4����t�.B����(������!�������!�������������������$��������r�#�+�������������(�����������"��������(��������-����!������;������-�� � � j�����#�;������-���j����������!��$�;������#��� � j����������!��$�;������#��)����,������u�����(���� � � )����,������u�����(�����vww�,�(����)���%�x���$����� � �+y+�z�{�|}~~�w�;������#�%�;��}}�wv�� � � ;������#�%�;��}}�|}>~~�w���



���

���� ���	�
����	�	������������������������������������������������������������ !������������"�������"#�����������������������������������������$���������������%������&����������&���'���(�����)� *+	,-	+.+-/�-0�12-,-	��	���3���������������"���������������������������� !������"�'���������������#��������4���'������#(��5���'��#�������"�����������������������'����������������������%������&�������������������"�'������"��'���'��������������'������������6�������������������7�����������8'��������������������������������"��'�����������7�����9�'�����:(;(�����<� =2���>?�/@�AB/.�2,2�.�.+-/����������'�����������������������������#����$������'������������������ !����$����������������������������C���������'�������'��������������(��D��������������������"��������������'������7�'������'������7�����������������������������'��������������������'�����#�"#�����4���'������#(�����EF�G-H+0+I�.+-/AJ+.?H2�����-0�12-,-	��	���3��������������#��������������������������#���������������������������"����������������������"#�����������������������'�����������������������7��������"#�����������������K������������������������������(��L����������������#��������������"����������������������������������������"���������������������M������"������������������'�����������������������������������������������������"���������������������(��4�����'��������������������#�������������7��������������������������"��'���������(��3����������������'������"��'����������������������������������������������������'����7��8'��������������'���������6�������"#�����4���'������#���������������������'����(����EE�N�.��OPQR+		+-/	��!���������������'��$���������������������������������'�������������'�$���������7�������������������������������������������7����������"��'�������������������"�������������������(�����E��
�S�I.+-/�-0�12-,-	��	���L���4���'������#������$�����������������������������T�'����#������������������������������������"���������"��������������������4���'������#(�����EU�V,,���	��



���

�������	
������������������	�������	��	�
�����������������������	���	��	�
���������������
��������������
	��	�
�����	
������ !" !�#$$%&'(�)*+,*�-,�./01+((+,2�,3�)*,$,(&'(�������������������������4���
5�����
�	
�������5�
46
	
���
��	����������������7
�����
	��	��������8�	�	��9����	5��	�:;�<�=8��=>�:���?���@A�����������������B;��	��	�����	������
7
���7�������
�	��7���������������� !" ��#$$%&'(�,3�-C%�D,(-�E/&'+3+%F�)*,$,(&'G(H���������������������	��������	
����7�	���5��	�I6��
7
������������
��	������������������������7
���������	���	����7�6��@JA����K
�4��������=8��	�����	���7�	��������8�	�	��9����	5��	�9
���	��L����		�����	
7�
�4����������	���7�	��������	��������������� !" "�M,2-%2-�,3�#$$%&'(���=���������������N��	���5
�
565N����	�
��	���7�����
�4�
�7��5�	
��O�� � !" " !� =�����5�N�������������	����������65�����7�	�������
���	P������ � !" " �� =����
4��	6����7�	�����������	����
	���6	���
Q�����������	�	
?�P������ � !" " "� ����	�
�����	�	�5��	��7�	�����4������R���7��	6���4��6�����7�	���������N�
���6�
�4����
����7���������?��	����65��	�P������� � � � !" " S� =���7��5��7����
�7���I6��	����������������	��	�
��
���5���	�����7�
���	�����7��5�	��	������?���������6	�5�	
������������
���������������	��������
�������	�����	
5��	�����7	������ !" S�T%U+(+,2�,2�#$$%&'(��=��������8�	�	��9����	5��	�9
���	���������
��6������
		������
�
������	�
�
�4�	�����	
������7�	������
�
����
	�
��	�����@�A����K
�4�������7	���	�������������������7
�����������������7�	������
�
����7�	��������8�	�	��9����	5��	�9
���	���5������7
�����
���	���	��	��������N��
	������������?
��������6����	���	��	��������8�	�	��9����	5��	�9
���	��N��
	�
��	�����@�A����K
�4�������7�����
�	��7�	��������8�	�	��9����	5��	�9
���	��L�����
�
�����



���

�������	�
��������������
��
��������
�	���
��������	���
������������������
��������
������	
�
�����������������������������������	
������
������
	�������
������������������������	
�
�������������������������	
������
������
	����
������
�������
�
�����
�������������
�������������������
�
�������������������� !"�#$�%�&�'!()�"��(* !* � ����#+,� %-.-/012-34�(5605646-7��8������������������������������������9
���������������	�
���
������������9
���
��������������
�����
����
��
����������9
������:	���
���������
����
������
����;<<�=�	�
���>�?@��#+,+,+� 8��
:�������
����
������
���#+,+A+� B��������
���������C�
������D��
�����E
����
	����
��#+,+#+� B��������
������F�����8�9��������#+,+G+� C�	���
������8		�������H9���
�����
������������
��������������#+A� I0J/7�K05�%-.-/0163L�4M-��64-��H�����������������������������		����
����������9
���������
����
�
���
�����B��������@�� N�OP;QR<�S<;TUP�VQWXTYZ�WP[�\]̂ _WYT̀TXTYZa�8������
�������
�����	�
b�������������
���������������������������������������������������
��	�����
����9
�������������
�����������c
��9������ N�dTUe<R�WP[�f<YY<R�g;<a��F��������
�����������������������������������������9����������
����������
���������
����
����
���
	���������������������	�����
����� N�hPiR<W;<�S<;TRẀTXTYZ�j<k<Xa������:��������9
	����������������������������
��
��������
���������
b����
	��
��������l�����	������������
����
������	�����
����� N�mR]̂ ]Y<�d]Q;TPU�WP[�Ô _X]Ẑ <PY�nYẀTXTYZa�����	����
���
����������������������9
�����l����9����
�	����������
�����������
�
���9
�
��c
��9������ N�Oi]P]̂ Ti�S<k<X]_̂ <PY�m]Y<PYTWXa��������������9
	��������������������������
�������
���������������
�������	����
	����������������o����������������	�
�
���p	������
	�����	�q���



���

�������	�
�������������������������������� ��!��"�#�$� ����%��&���� �%#�'(���%#�#�$� ����%��� �%(��(�#�(�)���#��!��'%����� �*�� (��%#+�)�������(��)�� �%,�� ��-������	���.�/������������#���%(�)���#��������!��"�����#�$� ���)����"�%�%��0���)1��0���%�*���%#����1�*�����(��)�2���,������#�$� ���)3(�#���%(�)���#�)��#�%�((��%#���� ��!�����)����#��%������)�2�����%� '#�%*������(���#' �(�)��(�%�� !�#�(�)���#,�� �����������4��5	���6���5	��������#�$� ����%��&�  ���%���7��������(��%�����%��')� ��%$�)�%��%��&�� ����8���7�%*�������%�"��(��"�����(���,��9:;� <=>?@>ABC�DEE?F>G�=@�H?I?C=JK?@>������L'%����� ��!���)��!�#�(� �(�(�����"�  �&�%*��������!���$���%��""�����%������)���)���(M�� 9:;:N:� -�O���������/P	������M�Q8��'���%��"���#�$� ����%���*)����%��"�)�����#�$� ����%���"������)���)�!����&��%�����L'%����� ��!��%#�����('���(("' �)�(��%#�%�,������R�$� ����%��S*)����%��&�  ���%���%��  ��)�$�(��%(��"�����('���(("' ��)���(� 0��%� '#�%*���%������ �%(0�(������"������)�2���0�(���#' �(0�"�%�%��� ��%"�)�����%��%#�&�))�%���(,��S�T')���(���%#�U� ��S*)����%��&�  �����������#��(��%��8�������������R�$� ����%��S*)����%�,�� 9:;:;:� -�O����������O������M��V�(��%#�%��(��  �)�#�$� ��������)���)�!��%�����)#�%���&�����  �"�#�)� 0�(������%#��'%����� �)�W'�)���%�(0��(��(��� �(��#��!��(('�%����"�����"�)(����)��"�������"����'��%�!��!�����L'%����� ��!�&����%�"�$��XYZ�!��)(��"��)��8��)����%��)���) ��)���)��%����%��"�����R�$� ����%��S*)����%�,��[�������"����(���$�%�%��(��  ����)���)#�#����� �(�%*,�� 9:;:9:� \�]5	���M�V�(��%#�%��(��  �#� �$�)��� ����)��"��)�#����%���"�)��(���("����)!��������L'%����� ��!����� �(�%*��%��������'%���"��̂ VQQ�̂ _[RVQR��̂ _̀US[R�R̀ aaSVU�Xbcdd0dddZ��(�(��')��!�"�)���)"�)��%����"������"�)���%���%�#�#�$� ����%��)�W'�)���%�(,��eDfghij�kl�<mi<ieno�njH�epqrheehij�mDsphmDrDjge�����������$����'%�"�)��)�$��&��)���((��%#������%�������8��'��#�*)����"������)��� ��!0�����(�)�W'�)�#�����������)���(� (�����)*�%�7�#��%�������%%�)�(����"��#��� �&,��T)���(� (�(��  �%����8���#����)�!�XcdZ���*�(��%� �%*���X�8� '#�%*� ����)��"��)�%(����� 0�)�('��(0���� ����*�X(Z0��%#�8+��� ���"���%��%�(0���������%�(0�#�$�#�)(0��%#�#)�&�%*(Z,��̀%����*��(��  �����%��)�)���#��(��%��(�#���"�(�%* �� �%�#0��!��#0���t+uv�w�ttv0��������"�����),������%'���)��"������(�������('������#��(��)�$�#�#��%�U�����%�u,x,��



���

���� ���	
���
�� �������������������������������� �!��"� #"����$$"�������%�&����������"'�(�������� ���������&�"�������$�$���)�����*� ��+	
�,-�.,/�
/�0�� 1%��"%!�#$���# !���������"#�%���!�����#�����$�&�2�������")�����3�� 4
��
5�,-��5�/06����	�	�6��
7��,��8,�9*:�;�
0�����3����<"#� %!�������!��"� #"�=����$�"����$#�2�� �������">#����������&�" �"��$���$���?����&��#�#>������#���������&"�>#$��������">#��������&��# #�$)����3�*��@#>����������'�(�� �����&�"���'�(������"�������"#A�$������?��"�&"�������#���� �"�!��"� #"������#"��#�%�����$$"�������$���%�&����������"�)�� ��3�3��B���%����"����������#2��$��!�����"&�"�����  #��"��"�����"�#�$#>#$��%������������������"#�!�����#�$����� #"���&�"�����#���C)D)������ EF;
5�
/G
��/7�HI�	�-�G���,/0�,-��J
�K
L
	,;6
/���
�6��� �������K
L
	,;6
/���
�6�M�5IG�I5
N���"�>#$����$���#%�$������"!�� �����O�>�%�&�����B���)���"�>#$����$���"#&�#���� �����&"�&���$�%�2�%���"����"��� ����������'#)�)���#���>����"���%#�#��$�&�"���"��#&��%#�#��$�%#��#%#�!����&��!�����)(���$���������"2��#A��#���%���"����"�����"�)��B��������"!�����%$�#��%�$��%��$����  �' #"�(� �"�������%������� �����&"�������#� �"���#���������� #"����$�"�������� �?�!����  )��P ������#������#��#�� #"����"��������#�>�%>�$��&"�>#$���&��# #���� ����#"�"�%����"��&���#�#%#�#�����$�"������)������*��Q�R
I;�,-��J
�K
L
	,;6
/���
�6N���"�>#$����$���"#&�#���� ������� �����?�!������"����$�����O�>�%�&�����B���)��S�����#�#�����#$���# !��������#�!�������#%%���%$��>�"�%%�"��&���#�#%#�!� �"��������#"��&"�����������2���"�%�����"����"����$������"��#����)���"�>#$��"�������� �����#�$#>#$��%�������#%%�������#2��$������#��&"������ �"������� ����������#�#��)��T�"# !�������#�$#>#$��%���#%%���������%%���$�����������2�$��#������������������� �����U��#�#&�%#�!)������3��K
L
	,;6
/���
�6�EF;
5�
/G
N���"�>#$������ #"�V��$�>�%�&������W&�"#������#������&�"��%��&��%#�X&"#>����"��#$���#�%�$�>�%�&�����)��O���"#&�#����� � �"��"�&"�����������%$�#��%�$��$����������"��� �#�>�%>������ "����� #����#�%�����$&�#��Y� "�����



����

���������	���
��������	�	�����	��
����	���������	�
�
��������	�����������
�������
�	�����������	�������
��������������	��	��������������������������� !"#!$%!�#$�&!'#($)*+#,-�."/0!%1'2��3����
������	����������4��	�����	����	5��������	�
����	�����	�	���6��7�5�������3����
��
�	���������
����5���������8�������������	���	����������
������������	������9���
��	�����������

���������
�����������������������������������������������4��	���3����
����
������	�������5��������8�����������	�������
����
�����:���
������������;������������5�����������
��������������
������	�����
���	���������	���	����	5��������������������������������		������
�������	���	��������	������
����<��������;��������5�����=������������<���������	���������������	��	�����������
�5����;��������	�>����	����������	������	�����
��	���
��������	������������	����	�����	������
�	������������
���
��	�������?��."//@�/@�A#$B$%#$(2��C�����
��	����	������
�����������	��������	������
�
������	�	����	��
�����	��	��	��	�	���������
��	�����	������������������	5�	�����������5���������5�����������	�������	��	���
��������	������������
�����?� &!D!,/ E!$1�."/ /'B,���� ��?�F�*+'#$!''�.,B$2��G��������	5�
�	�����
�����
�����������������4��	���
��	���
����������������

�	����	��
�����	��	����	����������
����4��	8��������	5���
�
�	��������	��������	������
����������	����	������4��	���	��������	�����������	���	������H�3����
�����������I����<�	�
����
�
�	���H�3����
��
�	�����������	��������������	��
��	���	�����	������4��	���	����
�������	������������	������	�����	���������	����	��������	������4��	���J�������H�;�����	��	�������		�
���
�J������
�	����	��I���5����I������	��������	��������	�
����4��	��H�K���5�
�	�����
�
������	������4��	8��
��������	����	�������
����������	���	�������	������	����	����
����	�����������H�K���5�
�	�����
�
���������4��	8�������	�������������������
�����������������=��������
��	����������	�=������
��	�������������	������	������������������5���������������LMN������	����������J���	�
��H�3����
������������������	��������������	����
��������������?�O�P!D!,�/@�Q!1+"$�B$-�*!$!@#1�1/�1R!�STU2��



����

������	��
����������������������������
�����
����
���	�����	����	����
�������
���	��
�������������������
���������������
�������
�	������
���
�������
����
����������������	������������
�����	����������������
�
�
�����������
��
���
��	�������
���
�����	����	����
������
���	��
���������
���  �!����
�
������	����	����
������	�������������������
�
��
���"���#����������
�
�
����	����
��� �$�������������
������������
������������������������
�������������
������������
����������������
������������
�
��������������
����������
�����
�����
��� �������
�������������������������
����
��
�����������������������	�����������������
��������������%&'&(�)*+,-,./+01�2-.3�45*6./5�789+,�9+5�:;5-+9+0/,<��=>�������"�
��������������������
�
�"�
������
�������������������������������
���
���
�����>
�����������
��������
�������
�
�"�
����������������� �=>�������"�
��������������������
�
�"�
��
������������
�?�����
����������	�����$��
���@�� �=>�����"���
��������������������������������
�������
���
���	��
��
����
����
�����
�A���������������� �������	����"�
���������
�"��������
�����������
���
�������
��"���	�����	������������
��
������ %&'&%�B/,0;-6.-*+�9+5�)8/9;�C0*6/DC098/�*E�7;*F/0.<��?�������������
���
�������������
���������������������
����������������	��
���������
G�������
�	���
��
��
�����������������
�������H���������
�������������
���������
��������I�� �J����������������������
�����������������K�����������������������
�#���������
��� �L��	������M��
�������"������N�������
������
�K��
���������������
��������������
���������
K�������������	�����������������������O�
���
����������"��O�����������������
�#�����
��������������
��� �?����
��������������������"��������
���������� �=>���
�����	���������
���
�����	��������
���
������
��� �=�
���
���������
����
�M�������
�N��� %&'&%&P� ?��������������
������
���������	������������
��������������	���M����������������N��Q��
��������������	������������
������"������



����

�������� �	
���	���	���������������	�
�	��������������������������
������	�
�	������	����������	���� �������	
���	�������	�����	�������	�
��������	������������	�������� 
���������!	��	
��������	���
	
��� ����"�#��$�	���������������%
&�
���� �����
���$	�������������	������	�	
��������	

���������������������������������	�
�	��������	�$����
�	�
�� ����������
	���
	�
��� ����'�()*+,-.�/01,203,4�� #��$�	�����!��	�	�
$	�
��	���	�����!�����!�	
���	
����������	

	
��������
	
���������� ��	����	!	��
���	
 ���������	$	����	�!�
�����
�����������������������#����
	�
�
��������!!��������	�
�����	�����	����!	����!	���5�6
	��	�
�����	��

�!����
��5�#��$�	��	���
�������
� ������������	��5�#��$�	������
��������!� ����������������	���	
����	����������	� 	
�������	 ����� ���
�	

	
������	
�	��
�!���	��	�	��	����� ���	��	$	���!	���������	���� ��	���
����������
	�$���	�!� ���������
����789/:;<��4�8=>?@>/:;<�9A:/8A:>�><B�(A;9877����C� 9)0.,)0D�� E�	����	���������
�	������ �	$�������
��������	��

����	�������$���	
����	��
�������
F����C�C��G��	�	��	�����H���������
������	��	$	���!	���E	�!������	��	 ��	��������� �������
	����$
��
��	
���	����I	�����J�J����KK�L*03.M�� ��C����N�
�	

�#���������	��	 ��	��������� �������
	����$
��
��	
���	����I	�����J�O�����CKK�L*03.M�� ��C�P��Q	$	�����R	���������N	�	��������	�STU������	��	 ��	��������� �������
	����$
��
��	
���	����I	�����J�O�����PKK�L*03.M��



����

��������	
����
���������	�������
���
������
�
�����������������������	���
��	��	�����	����	
�������������
�����	
�� ! � ���""�#$%&'(�� �������)�������	
��
����������	��*������	+���	,����������������������	���
��	��	�����	����	
�������������
�����	
�� ! � ��-""�#$%&'(�� ����.����	,���/�0���
���������������������	���
��	��	�����	����	
�������������
�����	
�� ! ! ��1""�#$%&'(�� 2$'34�5$%&'(�673%43849:�1;"""�#$%&'(�����1� <=34%'3'%79�>3'%&?�@3A'$B��C��0������������
D���E��
�����+	��	��
��FE�����������
��+��	���+	�������GC���������H���� I� �E��
��
�� J� KL�����
� M� N		�� �� C���� O� �		��PIP� Q
����+��	����/������
��+��	��+	�������������������	����
������������! � ���
��! � O���������0E������������
������	�
������������	�����0�
�����	����	�
��+	���������	�� ��	��������������	���������+�
����
�����	������	
����	� ���KR�S�TKH�C	���������E��	
�	+�����L�����
���+��	�U��+��������E�	��+������������	
��������	����������VN		�UW������	E��������
���VFE�����������
��+��	�W�	+� M�+	�����������	
 ��/���+�
�����	���+	�����������	
��	E����������0�
������0E������
�����FE�����������
��+��	��	+� M�������0�L�0E0��	�
������������X!Y��
��������E��
����	���	+����	E�����������
���	�����L�����
���+��	� ��/������	������	E��������������+	�������������	
 �����Z� [734=3'%$&�5B$A9((������	00����	+��
�����E�����������
�
�����SE
�����������������+	�0��������E��	
�	+�����	+������	�	���X�Y��������� ��/����	00�����������
D������	�	��������E�0��� ����



����

������	
�
��
�����������������
�����������������������������	�
����
�	��������������	�������
���	�������������������	
�
��
���������������������
�������������������
	����
�����
���	�������������	�
	�������	��	������������������������
	����
����
�������������	�
�	����	�������
���	������	������������	���������������
���������������������������
����
	����
������������
	��������
�	��
������������	�����������������������������������
������	���������	����
	������������������
���	����
	���	�����
��������������
	����������	�������
�	����
��������
���������
�	��������
�������	 ��������	��	���������������	������
	�!�
�����������!�������
	�
��������	����
	����
	��	����
�
�	���
���������	
�
��
�������������������������	����������





CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

June 7, 2021

Robin Ward
Municipality of Anchorage
Real Estate Department
4700 Elmore Road, 2nd Floor
Anchorage, AK 99507

Re: Request for Proposal – Girdwood Residential 2021

Dear Ms. Ward:

Thank you for the opportunity to present this Request for Proposal for approximately 150 acres of
residential development in Girdwood, Alaska. This proposal will include a partnership between
CY Investments, LLC, Pomeroy Property Development, Ltd., and Seth Andersen, P.E. We are
excited about the opportunity for the partnership to facilitate the integration of a world class resort
with the Girdwood community and its multiple housing needs, recreational opportunities, and
connectivity to the natural environment. This proposal presents opportunities for builders, private
parties, and non-profits to create affordable housing, workforce housing, single family units with
ADUs as well as resort centric housing.   Girdwood is a community that requires a mix of housing
units from seasonal workforce apartments to luxury townhouse and condominiums. This proposal
incorporates the most critical and immediate housing needs as well as permanent housing for both
local residents and users of the resort in fee simple ownership and for lease properties.  

Our proposal is to integrate the housing needs within a master plan rather than create economic
segregation by housing type and subdivision. The master plan will ensure the architectural
integrity of each housing type by the creation of a master homeowner association with Covenants,
Codes, and Restriction providing design standards for exterior elevations, landscaping and
pathways but allowing builders to work with their own building designers. This mix of housing
types will provide opportunity for builders, non-profits, and private parties to participate in and
purchase building lots and tracts which will facilitate faster absorption and creation of more
housing. The goal of this proposal is to create diversity and opportunity for additional members of
the real estate and building industry who might not otherwise be provided with this opportunity.

Within the proposal we discuss how our partnership will create a master planned development to
address the RFP’s project priorities and goals, specifically:

● Providing a mix of residential housing types,
● Prioritizing the natural environment and access to recreational

opportunities, Girdwood’s Soul
● Maintaining the National Historic Iditarod Trail as a vital community

asset with trail extensions to the Hotel Base area of Alyeska Resort,
● Preserving Class A wetlands, using environmentally sensitive designs and

layouts,
● Providing building lots designed to accommodate Accessory Dwelling

Units,
● Making building lots available to a variety of designers, builders, and

homeowners to sustain Girdwood’s unique housing environment, and





Municipality of Anchorage Request for Proposal
Girdwood Residential 2021



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

Table of Contents

4.4 Experience and qualifications of the Development Team 3
4.4.1 Development Team Structure 3
4.4.2 Makeup of the Development Team 4
4.4.3 Development Team Experience 9
4.4.4 Experience in Design-Build Projects 14
4.4.5 Proof of Financing 14

4.5 Development Proposal 15
4.5.1 Business Plan 15
4.5.2 Level of Return and Benefit to the MOA 20
4.5.3 Consistency with Adopted Plans and Ordinances 21
4.5.4 Description and Clear Scope/Scale of Project: 23

4.5.4.1 Concept Plans 23
4.5.4.2 Site Utilization 23

4.5.5 Neighborhood and Community Compatibility 25
4.5.6 Circulation Plans 26
4.5.7 Project Timeline 26

2





CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

4.4.2 Makeup of the Development Team

The Development Team consists of:

Partnership Members and Managers:

CY Investments, LLC.

Connie Yoshimura
Chief Executive Office

CY Investments is led by Connie Yoshimura, Chief Executive Officer.
Connie Yoshimura has over 40 years of residential real estate sales and
development experience. She has developed such popular new home
communities as Huffman Timbers, Turnagain View Estates, Potter
Highlands, Heritage Estates in Eagle River and Sandhill Reserve as
well as 140 multi-family units. Over her career, she has developed
over 150 multi-family units in duplex, four-plex, and 20 unit apartment
builds. She has been the managing partner of over 700 single family

and townhouse lots as well as over 120 condominiums. She is currently the
Owner/Broker of Berkshire Hathaway Home Services Alaska Realty which is an
exclusive 15 year franchise for the entire state of Alaska, including a commercial
division, relocation services, property management and branch offices in Homer and
Palmer, Alaska. Connie has a Master of Fine Arts degree from the Writers’ Workshop at
the University of Iowa, Iowa City and uses her writing talent to publish articles in the
Anchorage Daily News, the Alaska Journal of Commerce, to help educate Alaska’s
buyers and sellers in the purchase and sale and development of real estate. Her awards
and Honors include:

● 2020 BHHS Chairman Circle Platinum Threshold Award
● 2019 Anchorage Realtor of the Year
● 2019 Junior Achievement Business Hall of Fame Laureate
● Past Chair of the MOA Planning and Zoning Commission
● Featured in Anchorage’s Centennial book by Charles Wohlforth

4



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

Lottie Michael
Senior Vice President, Commercial Division of Berkshire Hathaway Services Alaska
Realty

Michael has a thorough understanding of the Alaska commercial real estate market, with
more than 40 years of experience. Her expertise covers all aspects of commercial real
estate from ownership and management to sales and leasing. Lottie is an integral member

of this team, bringing her expertise with capital market analysis,
investment acquisition and disposition, as well as asset administration
valuation.

Michael received the designation of Certified Commercial Investment
Member (CCIM) in 1983 from the National Association of Realtors and is
currently President of the CCIM Chapter. She is an active member in
several real estate organizations; former President of the Anchorage Board

of Realtors; former President of the Alaska Multiple Listing Service; and previous
Chairman of the State of Alaska Real Estate Commission.

Michael worked with Grubb & Ellis Real Estate in the late 80’s in the San Francisco Bay
Area in the Land and Investment Division with a sales and lease volume of over 40
million. In the early 90’s Michael took a position as the Senior Vice President for TRI
ONCOR International Commercial Real Estate Services where she developed and leased
to General Services Administration / FAA a build-to-suit facility, and was awarded
Salesperson of the Year for their Commercial Division.

Natalie Travers-Smyre
HOA Manager

Since obtaining her Real Estate License, and Associate Broker License
in 1990, Natalie has been involved in Homeowners Association
Management, residential land acquisition and sales, residential real
estate acquisition and sales, and project management of residential
land development projects.

Homeowner Association Management
● Management of over 2,000 individual units in multiple communities.
● Manage and perform daily tasks associated with management services to

customers, including homeowners, vendors, and HOA Board of Directors.

5



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

● Writing oh HOA documents including covenants, codes, and restrictions,
design criteria, and landscape requirements.

● Manage administration, accounting, insurance, and legal issues for the
HOA, and Condominium Board of Directors

● Facilitate the HOA process by developing budgets, strategies and
initiatives to ensure attainment of association goals.

● Coordinate with various entities including contractors, security, and
landscaping to ensure standards of homeowner associations.

Claire James
Marketing Director, Berkshire Hathaway HomeServices Alaska Realty

June 2020-Current: Integral component in the franchise transition to
Berkshire Hathaway HomeServices Alaska Realty from Dwell Realty
(March 2016-June 2021) with a focus on rebranding and statewide
growth. Oversees 3 office locations, a commercial Division and
retention of over 50 independent realtor contractors. Monitor and
maintain compliance to all brand marketing, creative innovative
marketing campaigns for new developments to include both
subdivision, vertical construction and builder advertising. Develop
company websites, promote digital marketing campaigns.

Prior employment includes Marketing and Client Relations Manager for Real Estate of
the Summit in Breckenridge, CO and Guest Services Manager for Denali Princess
Wilderness Lodge at Denali, AK.

Pomeroy Property Development, Ltd.

Pomeroy Lodging is a name that has been synonymous with
hospitality in Canada for the past three decades. From
humble beginnings the organization as it exists today has
been built on its five core values; Honesty, Family, Industry,
Quality and Winning. These values permeate throughout the
organization’s properties, the most recent addition to the
portfolio being the Alyeska Resort.

Ryan Pomeroy
Chief Executive Officer

Pomeroy officially joined the company in 2006 and has lead the company since
2007. Pomeroy maintains the companies vision and strategy and steers the overall

6



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

direction of the Pomeroy Lodging with the oversight that is balance sheet centric.
He is focused on building relationships with corporate and community
stakeholders; leading capital restructuring; and directs asset sales and acquisitions.
Pomeroy believes in a hands-on approach and will be deeply involved in the
planning and design of the development.

Ryan Laurie
Director of Asset Management

Laurie joined Pomeroy as the Director of Asset management in 2017.During this time
Laurie has played a significant role in the acquisition and renovation of many of the
largest hotel transactions in Canada in recent years. Laurie manages many of Pomeroy’s
relationships with outside stakeholders including investors, lenders, brands and landlords,
while also playing a key role in all transactions. Laurie will manage the relationship with
investment partners and support processes with the Municipality of Anchorage.

Nicholas Cheveldave
Director of Project Management & Construction

Chevekdave is an integral part of the team, working in construction leadership roles for
Pomeroy for over 11 years he is responsible for leading all new construction projects and
large-scale renovation projects, to include Managing contractor relationships,
construction timelines and communication with internal stakeholders to ensure a smooth
transaction from construction to operations. He has lead several new build projects, and a
number of large-scale property renovations during his time with Pomeroy and will be
deeply involved in the planning and design process of the development, working with
partners to provide assistance in managing contractors working on the construction of the
project.

Mandy Hawes
Alyeska Resort General Manager

Hawes, a local resident of Girdwood has been very involved in the community over the
past 20 years while working at the resort. Hawes served as the treasurer for Glacier
Valley Transit for 11 years, and three years as a member of the Girdwood Public Safety
Board, while also diligently attending any public meetings involving community matters.
Currently Hawes is serving on the Visit Anchorage Board and Alaska Tourism Industry
Association Marketing Committee.

7



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

Hawes Manages all aspects of operations at the resort with all major department heads
reporting to her, as well as being the primary contract for ownership. Hawes will serve as
a key Pomeroy ownership representative on the ground in Girdwood throughout the RFP
and development process. Hawes will be a vital conduit between ownership and the local
community of Girdwood.

Seth Andersen, P.E.
Project Management and Community Relations

Andersen is a licensed professional civil engineer with experience in structural
engineering, civil engineering, geotechnical engineering, site development and project
management, throughout Alaska, Washington and Montana. Andersen has extensive
knowledge of land use regulations, permitting, and entitlements; technical knowledge of
engineering design; and practical experience managing and constructing projects. Project
management and development services include site selection, due diligence, entitlements
and permitting, financial modeling, zoning changes and variances, ROM cost estimating,
and management of; design, bidding, contracting and construction. Andersens’s
development expertise is in commercial and residential real estate development projects
which require complex entitlements, permitting and coordination with authorities and
utilities. Andersen has been providing engineering, construction, and development
support services since 2008.

Professional Consultants - See Appendix A for firm profiles and professional resumes:

● SE Group – Community, Recreation and Resort Planners and Designers
● McKinley Research – Housing Market Studies and Economic Analysis
● Triad Engineers, Brandon Marcott – Civil Engineering, subdivision, road and

utility design
● CRW Engineering Group, Mike Jokela – Surveying, plats, easements
● Bettisworth North Architects and Planners – Landscape Architects and Design

Guidelines
● Travis Peterson Environmental Consulting, Inc. - Wetland Delineation and

Environmental
● McCollum & Rounds, Jim McCollum – Attorney for Common Interest

Ownership Community
● Berkshire Hathaway Home Services Alaska Realty Commercial Division Senior

Vice President - Lottie Michael, CCIM - resort base area hospitality consultant

Civil Contractors

8



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

o The civil construction scope will be bid out to licensed, bonded and insured
general contractors. Contractors will be selected based on costs and experience to
ensure competitive pricing and contractors with capability in performing the
work, technical experience, record of delivering projects on time, financial and
administrative capacity, and credible references. All contractors will provide
100% Payment and Performance Bonds.

Bid documents will be created by Triad Engineers. Subdivision agreements with
the MOA will be created by Triad Engineers and reviewed by CY Investments,
LLC and McCollum and Rounds.

Marketing and Land Sales

o Berkshire Hathaway Home Services Alaska Realty, an exclusive statewide real
estate brokerage for residential and commercial properties for the State of Alaska
will be engaged to market and sell building lots, homes and commercial property
and will provide property management for residential and commercial properties.

o Dwell Realty, LLC will be engaged to manage the Master and Sub Homeowners
Associations.

Advisors and Consultation with the following:

o Girdwood Community Land Trust

o Girdwood Board of Supervisors

o Imagine Girdwood

o Girdwood Trails Committee

Members of the Development Partnership with overall project responsibility will not be
allowed to change without consent of the Municipality of Anchorage.

4.4.3 Development Team Experience

Each member of this development team brings unique experiences and expertise that
complement each other and encompass the several technical needs of this proposal.

CY Investments, LLC has over 40 years of residential real estate sales and development
experience.  CY Investments has successfully developed and sold residential land for 40

9



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

years and has developed such popular new home communities as Huffman Timbers,
Turnagain View Estates, Potter Highlands, Heritage Estates in Eagle River and Sandhill
Reserve as well as 140 multi-family units. CY Investments has a robust understanding of
market needs and aspirations of homeowners. CY Investments has an in-depth knowledge
of the organizational, entitlement, design and permitting required to create successful
neighborhoods and communities.

Pomeroy Property Development, Ltd. has three decades of successfully providing
hospitality, lodging and resort amenities and enhancing communities. Pomeroy’s award
winning and international success is based on the connections it makes with each
community it operates and its partnerships with world class companies in the hospitality
industry. Shortly after acquiring Alyeska Resort, Pomeroy made a long-term commitment
to the Girdwood community by developing their Nordic Spa, providing immediate design
and construction jobs, a long-term need of 50+ new permanent employees, and an
amenity for the community and Alaska to appreciate.

Seth Andersen has provided civil engineering services ranging from subdivision design,
geotechnical exploration and recommendations, structural design, entitlements and
permitting. Andersen is also a general contractor with a residential endorsement and
focuses on providing smaller and efficient housing as a solution toward affordability and
optimizing land utilization. Andersen has a long experience with resort towns and ski
areas growing up in a small town neighboring a world-class year-round resort and
spending winters at the local resort where his dad, siblings and himself worked. Andersen
spent 7 years installing, designing and servicing ski lifts and gondolas for Poma in resort
communities throughout the world and was involved with the initial developments at
Moonlight Basin at Big Sky Resort as a civil engineer/surveyor.

CY Investments, LLC
For 30 years CY Investments, LLC has transformed undeveloped land into successful
residential neighborhoods. The following are examples of these projects:

Development of Sandhill Reserve
Dates:  June 2020 ongoing
Financial Commitment:  $4.2 M
Roll:  Managing Member of Sandhill Development, LLC
Description: 42 single family lots located at the corner of W. 80th and Sand Lake Road.
CY Investments, LLC responsible for acquisition, securing financing, design and project
management. Negotiation with AWWU for extension of 1,200 ft waterline with shared
cost. Connie Yoshimura, broker/owner of Berkshire Hathaway Home Services Alaska
Realty, responsible for marketing and sales.

10



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

Development of Huffman Timbers
Dates: June 2017 closed out
Financial Commitment:  $4.6M
Roll:  Managing member of Huffman Timbers Development, LLC
Description 43 single family lots located at the corner of Lake Otis and Huffman Road in
southeast Anchorage. CY Investments, LLC responsible for acquisition, securing
financing, design and project management. Connie Yoshimura, broker/owner of Dwell
Realty, responsible for marketing and sales.

Development of Potter Highlands and Potter Creek
Dates: 1997—on going
Financial Commitment:  $6 M
Roll:  Managing member
Description: Negotiated remaining three tracts of Potter Creek from Neil Bergt’s
bankruptcy (owner of Mark Air) concurrently with 160 acres adjacent to Potter Creek
from a private party. Ongoing responsibility for financial negotiation, design and project
management,  sales and marketing.

Development of Cedar Hills Subdivision
Dates: 1997-ongoing
Financial Commitment:  $450,000 current
Roll:  Managing Member
Description: approximately 97 acres of residentially zoned single family and low
density multi-family within the City limits of Palmer. Responsible for three variances
approved by the City Council for 83 large lots (30,000 to 42,000 square feet) with well
and septic systems, elimination of curb and gutter, fire hydrants and sprinklers and
approved drainage plan. Construction of the first phase of 29 lots is to begin August 1,
2021. Estimated financial commitment at time of construction: $1.2M

Pomeroy Property Development, Ltd.
Over the past 3 decades, Pomeroy has completed nearly $500M of construction projects,
with many of those projects being ground up hotel developments, however these projects
have also included multiple retail and food & beverage developments. As the owner and
operator of the Resort adjacent to Tract I, Pomeroy will have a significant concentration
of resources available to assist in the management of the development right next door.

11



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

The Renovation of the Pomeroy Kananaskis Mountain Lodge

In September of 2015, Pomeroy acquired the Delta
Lodge at Kananaskis, a resort in the Canadian
Rockies that was built for the 1988 Winter Olympics
in Calgary and hosted the 2002 G8 summit. Over the
years, the previous ownership group had invested
almost no capital, allowing front-of-house,
back-of-house, mechanical, and infrastructural
facilities to tire to pieces.

Shortly after
closing on the acquisition of the Resort, Pomeroy
embarked on a $45M renovation of the nearly 30-year
old facility. The renovation included an overhaul of
every guest-facing part of the resort; rooms, lobby,
restaurants, meeting space and exterior while also
addressing many of the back-of-house areas; kitchens,
front office and staff housing. Throughout this entire
renovation, the hotel remained open and operating.
Since executing on the renovation of the hotel, the

Resort’s revenues have grown over 50% from pre-acquisition levels.

Development of the Pomeroy Inn & Suites Prince George

Prince George is one of the largest cities in Northern British Columbia, Canada and is a
market the Pomeroy had sought to develop a hotel
in for a number of years. In 2015, the perfect site
was identified. Pomeroy assembled a parcel of land,
which was owned by the City of Prince George and
the Prince George Golf Club and set out to build the
Pomeroy Inn & Suites Prince George, managing
everything from permitting, land zoning and design
and ultimately serving as the GC for the project. By
the end of 2018 the hotel had opened with
construction costs coming in just under the budget

of $20M. The extended stay hotel features 126 apartment style rooms outfitted with full
kitchenettes, a water park and meeting space.

12



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

Development of the Alyeska Nordic Spa

Pomeroy acquired the Alyeska Resort in
2018 under the premise of the assets’
potential. In advance of exploring the
highest-and-best-use for all of the excess
land that was acquired as part of the
transaction, Pomeroy was convinced that the
addition of a world-class spa amenity would
be welcomed by the Resort’s loyal, local
customer base while also adding to the
destination that is Alyeska for potential
out-of-state.

Despite a Global Pandemic, Pomeroy has
managed to execute one of, if not, the largest private real estate investments in the
Girdwood Valley in recent past. This development has provided invaluable experience to
Pomeroy’s construction and asset management team in regards to local development
ordinances and permitting processes, the current local contractor landscape and the
challenges that come with building in Alaska during COVID. The expectation is that
supply chain and skilled-labor shortage issues should improve from this point going
forward, however having been through the worst of this only provides valuable
experience as the construction industry continues to adjust coming out of COVID.

It is worth noting that shovels for the Nordic Spa project were just getting into the ground
as the World Health Organization announced the Global Pandemic. When this happened,
all travel ground to a halt, and the global hospitality industry saw an unprecedented
amount of cancellations with Alyeska being as impacted as any one. While
shelter-in-place orders and lockdowns forced the temporary closure of the Resort for
two-and-a-half months, Pomeroy soldiered on with the development of the Alyeska
Nordic Spa, illustrating its commitment to investment in the Girdwood Valley and the
Resort Locale. The Alyeska Nordic Spa is set to open in August of 2021 and while this is
admittedly later than the originally targeted open date, construction on the spa never
stopped after the initial lull at the outset of the pandemic. Pomeroy’s willingness and
ability to build what will be a state-of-the-art facility during the most significant
downturn in the Alaska hospitality industry ever should provide the HLB and the
Municipality the comfort that any future bumps in the road will not stop the organization
from pursuing the development of the RFP Lands.

13



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

Seth Andersen, P.E.
For 20-years Seth Andersen, P.E.’s has acted as a professional consultant and
representative for developers, land owners and architects. Andersen has provided
consulting services for entitlements and engineering design for several projects in the
Girdwood Valley such as the Alyeska Nordic Spa, the Winner Creek Tram, Glacier City
Center, and numerous single family and multi family residences throughout the
Girdwood Valley.

As a licensed general contractor with a residential endorsement Andersen has designed,
funded, permitted and constructed numerous design-build residential projects ranging
from large lot single family homes, duplex and triplexes, and multi unit condominiums,
including projects in Girdwood. In the past 5 years interest has been in providing
compact and efficient residential housing as an opportunity to lower the cost of
homeownership. Andersen developed the Unit Lot Subdivision Ordinance for the
Municipality of Anchorage as a tool to provide more affordable, fee-simple, housing, has
been an active member of Anchorage Economic Development Corporations Live Work
Play Housing Committee and regularly contributes to policy decisions regarding housing
and development.

Rolls in development projects regularly includes; site selection and due diligence,
entitlements and permitting, financial modeling, zoning changes and variances, ROM
cost estimating, as well as management of design, bidding, contracting and construction.

4.4.4 Experience in Design-Build Projects

Majority of the projects listed in the previous section were successfully developed using
the development team partnership structure and process described in section 4.4.2.
Pomery and Seth Andersen, P.E. have performed true design-build projects (Alyeska
Nordic Spa as an example) however the majority of projects, and the structure of this
proposal, is to engage consultants to perform technical design and general civil
contractors to perform the horizontal construction of roads and utilities. Engaging
technical consultants allows us to select those that have the most relevant experience and
to work as a team to select a general civil contractor through a competitive bid process.
As the project developers with extensive experience in land development, we will be
closely involved and integral to the design process. We will manage the design,
entitlements, permitting, bidding and execution of the physical improvements.

Although members of this development partnership may independently build the vertical
construction within the development area, the structure is to provide improved building
sites for a variety of designers, builders, and homeowners. This structure allows a greater

14







CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

4.5 Development Proposal

4.5.1 Business Plan

The Municipality of Anchorage is facing a severe housing shortage and nowhere in the
1,982 square miles of the MOA is this housing shortage more obvious than in Girdwood
where the average sales price of a single family is $866,714 year to date 2021. Last
year’s average sales price was $606,819, an increase of 42.83% while Anchorage’s
increase in value for single family homes was only 8.14%. The average price of a
Girdwood condo is now $362,786 compared to the average Anchorage condo sales price
of $215,777. Currently, there are only three residential homes for sale and zero condos.
There are only four vacant land listings. The MLS statistical information quoted above
does not reflect private party transactions which become prevalent in a small market
without any inventory. Anecdotally, Berkshire Hathaway Homes Alaska Realty recently
had the opportunity to list a Girdwood home for sale at $515,000. It had 10 offers within
24 hours of MLS publication and sold for $90,000 above list price. The recent $15M
investment in a Nordic Spa by Pomeroy Property Development, Ltd. will require 50 new
employees which will add to an already severe housing shortage. The Heritage Land
Bank RFP for residential development up to 150 acres couldn’t be more timely.

The business plan proposed by CY Investments, LLC, Pomeroy Property Development,
Ltd. and Seth Andersen, P.E. Proposes a wide variety of housing types to meet an
evolving Girdwood demographic. Housing types include workforce housing, affordable
housing, moderately priced single family homes with ADUs, luxury 50,000 square foot
lots as well as cottages and ‘bird’ houses. This mixed zone residential development will
consist of 102 housing units in the Holtan Hills neighborhoods and the partnership's
mixed use resort base area development of 70 residential units and 7 acres for mixed use
consisting of residential and resort related amenities.

Extension of the National Iditarod Trail

This non-motorized trail for pedestrian traffic from Holtan Hills to the hotel is
approximately 1.25 miles, an easy walking, biking and skiing jaunt which fulfills the
basic premise of the business plan which is the social and economic integration of Gird’s
largest employer and the residents of Girdwood. Trails and connectivity and access to
outdoors and recreational opportunities are a key component to the business plan/success
of neighborhoods, Girdwood and the resort. This trail extension will continue to provide
the recreational opportunities that Girdwood thrives on as a community. The Trail will
also provide a secondary (pedestrian) route across Glacier Creek in the event the main
bridge crossing Glacier Creek was damaged or unusable.

17



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

It is equally important to maintain the National Historic Iditarod Trail as a community
asset and connector between the school, and town center, the Holtan Hills neighborhood,
established trails in the California creek, the crow creek mine and winner creek trail. The
extension of the iditarod trail shall be dedicated as an easement as part of the platting
process.

Mixed Residential Zoning within a Tract

If mixed use, why not mixed zoning? In a mixed-use community grandparents can live
next door to their millennial grandkids. The grandparent can reside in an attached
townhouse style ranch while the millennial with a dog and two small children can reside
in a 3-4 bedroom with a fenced backyard for the children and dog. As long as there is an
HOA to enforce a common architectural theme, mixed zoning within a tract creates a
social vitality not available to new home communities where all homeowners fit the same
demographic by age and income. In-home care for aging parents and child care for
children can also be accomplished by attached or detached ADUs. However , the
Girdwood square footage requirements for accessory dwelling units needs to be increased
to 820 square feet, from its current restrictive 600 square feet. The larger square footage
is more compatible for two residents. Bottom line: mixed zoning generates faster
absorption which creates more housing and increases the profitability not only for the
private developer but also for the MOA because the Holtan Hills Phase I, II and III,
provides a profit share. Employee housing for the resort will be strategically placed
and will conform to the architectural control and covenants, codes and restrictions.It will
be no more than three stories and no more than six units per building. There will also be
a need to adjust zoning within certain tracts for a more generous variety of housing types
including square footage and multiple housing types such as condominiums.

Shared off-site Infrastructure Cost

In order to fulfill the projected 172 housing units inclusive of Alyeska Village over a
year period of time, there will be a need for both private and public financial

participation. Girdwood is not the only community within the MOA that has had only
stunted growth due to the lack of participation by the MOA for the lack of coordination
and construction of offsite utilities, including water, sewer and road extensions. No
residential developer can be expected to build collector roads without being able to direct
access lots. Developers should only be required to provide the full expense for on-site
utilities and roads. This proposal requires an upfront cost by AWWU for the extension of
the Holtan Hills and road waterline the cost of which will be reimbursed through a 50/50
profit share as each phase is successfully completed. AWWU has already put in a sewer
line and road to facilitate school construction. However, the required extension of the
sewer to the lot line which is required by private developers was not made. Had that
been done at the time of original construction, the cost for the sewer extension would

18



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

now be reduced by one third. See attached letter of agreement between the Heritage Land
Bank and AWWU for the water line extension agreed to in 2010.

Public Private Cooperation Agreements and Financing

The partnership requests the support and participation for the approval of the crow creek
road to fire access only. In addition we request cooperation for the removal of the section
line easement, similar to what was previously done in the Holtan Hills initial plan. We
request the Heritage Land Bank release the rights to the crow creek plan and all related
studies to the partnership as well as the release of all R&M and Boutet Company
engineering plans and survey information, shared off site infrastructure costs.

This proposal requests subordination of the land in exchange for a 50/50 share of net
profits (See Budget) for the Holtan Hill Neighborhoods. For the Alyeska Village the
terms are cash purchase paid follows: paid upon transfer of title to the
partnership and balance due upon approval of the Title 21 development master plan and
approval of all permits for the site access road as well as plat approval for the 27 acres.
No rezone is required for the development of this parcel.

Land Developer Vs. Builder

This proposal is for the creation for residential development of 150 acres creating 172
housing units. It is not a design/build proposal where the developer functions also as the
ultimate user of the land for the construction of housing units. Rather, this proposal
creates the opportunity for lots sold to non-related builders, private parties and potential
non-profits such as the community land trust. Over the past five years, there has been a
trend in residential development where the developer is also the builder and thus excludes
other builders from entering the community. All builders who are appropriately licensed,
bonded and insured with a residential endorsement will be welcome in our developments.

Land Utilization

A breakdown of the development areas and acreage is as follows:

● Holtan Hills Phase I – acres – rezoned as mixed residential with ( ) 8,400
square foot single family lots and ( ) multi family lots for townhouse, condo,
apartment and attached or detached cottages, townhouses, and
“pocket-neighborhoods”.

19



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

● Holtan Hills Phase II – acres – rezoned as mixed residential with ( )
townhouse lots and ( ) 10,000 square foot lots for single or multifamily mixed
uses.

● Holtan Hills North Face – acres – consists of ( ) 50,000 sf single family lots
with onsite well and septic.

● Holtan Hills Development Reserve – acres – could consist of an additional
( ) 50,000 sf single family lots with onsite well and septic.

● Alyeska Village – acres – Resort base area will include traditional base area
village uses with a variety of structures including 3 and 4 level mixed use
buildings (residential apartments and condos over amenities), extended stay
lodging, as well as single family and townhouse residences at the perimeter of the
development area. Pathways will connect the Village with the Hotel and Nordic
Spa base area. Summer and Winter recreation trails will provide access to the
established hiking, skiing and biking trail networks (i.e. Nordic ski trails, stumpy
winter trail, winner creek trail, and moose meadows).

As an affiliate of the ownership of Alyeska Resort, Pomeroy Property
Development Ltd. is the ideal partner to participate in the design and planning of
the proposed Alyeska Village site on Tract I. As the largest private owner of land
in Girdwood, the organization is currently in the process of completing a Master
Planning exercise on its existing fee simple owned lands and could easily tack on
the planning of Tract I to the project ensuring continuity and efficiency across the
developments.

● Alyeska Village Access Road – acres – Road will be accessed from the
Arlberg extension and located to minimize the impact on adjacent wetlands. The
road will curve around the wetlands in a way to avoid wetland areas. Permits will
be coordinated with the US Army Corp of Engineers and wetland impact offsets
from The Alaska Railroad and/or Great Land Trust.

● Alyeska Village Reserve – acres – this area is located northeast of the acres
zoned GRST-2 and is intended as connectivity and access to the Winner Creek
and Nordic ski area trails.

Development Budgets

The development budgets provided in Appendix C are based on the development areas
described above and engineering estimates of costs based on 2021 actual costs for current

20



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

developments. Sales price and land valuations used in the budget are based on current
land values and in depth knowledge of the Anchorage residential housing and land
markets.

Marketing and Sales Plan

Berkshire Hathaway HomeServices is a name that stands for trust, stability, integrity, and
longevity. Berkshire Hathaway HomeServices national and international reach stretches
across 3 continents and 9 countries. Broker to broker referrals connect us with over
50,000 sales professionals, over 1,450 offices plus an additional 2,000 commercial sales
agents worldwide. Berkshire Hathaway represents 72% of the industry share of media
voice while providing a luxury collection marketing platform that delivers maximum
exposure to qualified prospects through integrated marketing plans that highlight the
unique qualities of the second home market.

Homeowners Association Management

Natalie Travers-Smyre, Manager of the Homeowner Association Management Division
of Dwell Realty, will create the Master Association and Sub-Associations for the
community, including Design Criteria, Covenants, Codes, and Restrictions.

Dwell Realty utilizes RentManager, a fully integrated cloud-based management system
that tracks all requests from homeowners, provides online dues payments, and a full
accounting of association funds, including reserves.

4.5.2 Level of Return and Benefit to the MOA

The proposed developments will provide economic public benefits including design and
construction related employment throughout the phased implementation period and long
term employment from construction, property management and maintenance and services
associated with residential properties. The fully constructed developments will provide

homes including affordable housing, workforce housing, single family units with
ADUs as well large lot single family housing. This new housing will help stabilize
Girdwood by providing a variety of housing types that are needed. Housing availability
and affordability is an ongoing challenge in Girdwood and limits employers ability to
recruit and retain employees as well as limits the capacity of visitors contributing to the
local economy.

The National Association of Home Builders (NAHB) publishes estimated economic
impacts related to residential construction. The most recent NAHB data is from 2015 and
is for a typical metropolitan area or non metropolitan county. Estimated direct impacts

21



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

related to building includes direct and indirect impact of the construction itself, and the
impact of local residents who earn money from the construction activity spending part of
it within the local area’s economy.

Estimated ongoing, annual local impacts that result from the new homes being occupied
include occupants paying taxes, participating in the local economy year after year, and
the effect of increased property taxes, based on the difference between the value of raw
land and the value of a completed house on a developed lot.

The NAHB impacts are based on a national average. Using the NAHB data as a basis the
proposed new housing units provided in all phases of development have the
following local impacts:

● Estimated construction related impacts include:
○ $49 M in local income,
○ $6 M in taxes and other revenue for local governments, and
○ 600 local jobs.

● Estimated annually recurring impacts include:
○ $7 M in local income,
○ $1.8 M in taxes and other revenue for local governments, and
○ 110 local jobs.

Local jobs are measured in full time equivalents - i.e. one reported job represents work
for one full time employee for one year.

In addition to the construction related governmental revenue and ongoing annual property
tax revenue, under this proposal structure the MOA will share in profits generated from
the sale of improved building sites in the Holtan Hills neighborhoods

and will receive an upfront cash payment for the Alyeska Village development area of

Qualitative benefits of the proposed developments include new housing opportunities, a
diversity of housing types to facilitate economic and social diversity, increased access to
recreation via trail connectivity to the town center, resort areas and established summer
and winter trail systems, added capacity to support new employment opportunities in the
community, and added capacity to support visitors and tourists.

22



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

4.5.3 Consistency with Adopted Plans and Ordinances

Holtan Hill Neighborhoods

The Holtan Hills development areas are currently zoned GR-3 (single and two-family) in
the lower neighborhoods (nearest the school) and GR-3 and GR-5 (multi-family) further
to the northeast. Our proposal is to make adjustments to the current zoning so that a mix
of single and multi-family housing and accessory dwelling units (ADU) can be located
closer to the town center and school and larger lot single family housing (that can
accommodate ADU’s) can be located further up valley and in a location where the
topography can accommodate larger lot single family housing and where the cost of
installing water and sewer utilities is not practical. The Girdwood Land Use Code does
not have a zoning category that allows for a mix of single family and multi-family
housing in one zone, options to integrate the housing types will be explored.

New development in the GR-3 zoning area requires an Area Master Plan approval prior
to development. In 2006 HLB and Agnew Beck prepared the Crow Creek Neighborhood
Land Use Plan which was adopted by the Anchorage Assembly as an area master plan
fulfilling the Title 21 requirement. Unfortunately, the approved area master plan was not
implemented or granted a schedule modification within the 7-yr time period required in
code. We understand that the prior plan requires an update, a new public process, and
approvals by the Planning and Zoning Commission and Anchorage Assembly.

The submittal requirements for an area master plan are very comprehensive and we
would request HLB to release the rights to the expired plan and associated engineering
studies to facilitate updating the plan and obtaining approvals.

Alyeska Village

The Alyeska Village development site is currently zoned GRST-2, new base resort. This
zoning designation carries a Development Master Plan approval prior to development.
The proposed development for this site conforms to the current zoning category
development criteria and will be designed and constructed to satisfy all municipal codes
and ordinance.

Development of the Alyeska Village development site in partnership with the owners and
operators of Alyeska Resort will ensure a continuity of services, design aesthetic and
phasing which will allow the existing and new base areas to be master planned in a way
that best serves visitors and users of the resort. Pomeroy Property Development, Ltd. is

23



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

currently in the process of preparing a Master plan for the Alyeska Resort and their base
area properties. They have engaged an international planning and design firm, SE Group,
as a consultant to help with the master planning. SE Group’s experience and expertise is
in master planning and development plans for ski resort communities which can be
applied to integration of Alyeska Village with the existing resort and community.
McKinley Research Group (previously McDowell Group) is also engaged as a consultant
to provide a Girdwood housing needs study that will guide the development plan for
Alyeska Village and development phasing. Planning, design, and creating a development
master plan for Alyeska Village is anticipated to take up to two years at which point
Pomeroy will be ready to construct access roads and utility extensions to the development
site.

Wetlands

Wetlands impact both the Holtan Hill Neighborhoods and the Alyeska Village
development site. Work that impacts wetlands requires approved permits from the U.S.
Army Corp of Engineers (USACE). Areas where placing fill in wetlands is unavoidable
require permit approval which is an iterative process between the applicant, USACE, and
public input. Based on the outcome of the permit review, permits will be approved with
requirements for best management practices and may include mitigation such as
permittee responsible compensatory mitigation. We are aware that the Alaska Railroad
and Great Land Trust have active wetland banks.

Girdwood Area Plan Rewrite

We understand that the Girdwood Area Plan is currently in the process of being updated.
This effort is being led by Imagine Girdwood and is estimated to be complete in
approximately 1 to 2-years. Based on conversations with representatives of Imagine
Girdwood we believe our intended uses within the Holtan Hills Neighborhoods generally
conforms to the priorities in the Land Use Plan update. Additionally, the new Girdwood
Cemetery site is located in one of the few areas that was zoned and available for
multi-family housing. This loss of a multi-family zoning area supports the need to rezone
areas of Holtan Hills.

4.5.4 Description and Clear Scope/Scale of Project:

The following sections describe the proposed development areas, conceptuals circulation
plans and neighborhood compatibility. Section 4.5.4.2 describes the development sites,
associated acreage, make up of residentials uses and unique features and opportunities.
Project costs are defined and included in the Business Plan section 4.5.1 of this proposal
and the expected number of construction jobs is described in section 4.5.2.

24



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

4.5.4.1 Concept Plans
Concept site plans and a phasing plan is included in Appendix B. Images characterizing
design styles and standards that will be written into the Covenants, Codes and
Restrictions are included as Appendix D.

4.5.4.2 Site Utilization

Our proposal covers acres of HLB land and provides housing units, of a variety
of types, housing, amenities and commercial uses in the GRST-2 zoned area, recreational
and open space buffers, and a proposed community connector trail between the Holtan
Hill Neighborhoods, the hotel base area, the girdwood school and townsite.

The development areas are divided into the following distinct areas and phases:

● Holtan Hills Phase I - consists of acres. The area has a significant amount of
land challenged by topography, bedrock outcrops, and wetlands. The phase I area
is currently zoned for single and two-family housing. Our proposal is to rezone
the area to a zoning designation which allows mixed housing types to allow more
economical housing as well as social and economic diversity. This area is
programmed with single family lots (suitable for attached or detached adu’s)
and multi-family lots for compact housing types such as attached or detached
cottages, townhouses, and 4-unit buildings for apartment or condos. Wetland areas
are included in the total development area as open space and a natural feature to
appreciate.

● Holtan Hills Phase II - consists of acres. The area also has challenging
topography and bedrock outcrops but moves away from the concentrated wetland
areas. Phase II area is currently zoned for single and two-family housing. Our
proposal is to rezone the areas to accommodate multi-family housing and
townhouse lots. This phase is programmed with townhouse lots located near
the glacier creek bluff and multi-family lots for compact housing types such as
attached or detached cottages, townhouses, “pocket-neighborhoods”, and 4-unit
buildings for apartment or condos. Wetland areas are included in the total
development area as open space and a natural feature to appreciate. Lots will be
located based on topography and to provide views from as many lots as possible.

● Holtan Hills North Face (Phase III) - consists of acres. The area is moderately
sloping towards the south and east and removed from wetland areas and bedrock
outcrops. This area is programmed with up to - 50,000 square foot
single-family and two-family lots (suitable for attached or detached adu’s) with

25



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

onsite well and septic. Lots will be designed to maximize views and nestle into
the existing forest. The National Historic Iditarod Trail crosses this neighborhood
providing access to the lower Holtan Hills and up the valley towards the Crow
Creek Mine and Winner Creek Trail.

● Holtan Hills Development Reserve - consists of acres. The area is a
continuation of Holtan Hills North Face and has many of the same natural
features. The area could accommodate - 50,000 square foot single-family
and two-family lots (suitable for attached or detached adu’s) with onsite well and
septic.

● Iditarod Trail Community Connector Trail - Alyeska Resort is a commercial and
recreational landmark and Girdwood is a community whose residential properties
and town center is disconnected from the largest community asset and
employment center. The community connector trail is a way to connect these
three important community assets. The trail is approximately one mile from
Holtan Hills to the Hotel Alyeska. Pomeroy Property Development, Ltd. is
supportive of building workforce and employee housing in Holtan Hills provided
there is a direct pedestrian connection to the hotel base area and the appropriate
mixed zoning can be obtained. Including this workforce housing in the Holtan
Hill Neighborhoods brings economic and social integration between the town and
the resort.

The community connector trail is also an important public safety improvement for
the Girdwood community. Currently if the Alyeska Highway vehicle bridge were
compromised there is no secondary route to cross Glacier Creek and exit the
Girdwood Valley. The community trail connector is an important component of
connecting the community with the base areas and will require financial
participation of the local, state and federal agencies, various non-profits and grant
programs. Sections of the National Historic Iditarod Trail, and the portions of the
proposed connector trail that fall within the development areas will be dedicated
and platted trail easements.

● Alyeska Village - consists of acres. The area is in close proximity to the
Alyeska Hotel base area, the nordic ski trails and established recreational trails.
The site is level and the east edge overlooks Glacier Creek. Access to the site
from Arlberg Avenue is complicated by wetland areas. Water and Sewer utilities
are located nearby but require significant costs to adequately service the area. The
area is zoned GRST-2 and is intended to support the alpine ski area and tourism.
The area is programmed for up to residential units made up of townhouses,
stacked condos and single family homes in addition to approximately acres

26



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

intended as mixed use developments with housing, lodging, and resort amenities
and services. Platted lots will be designed around the Glacier Creek bluff,
adjacent wetlands and meadows and forest areas. Trails will connect the
development site to the hotel and adjacent recreational trails.

● Alyeska Village Access Road - consists of approximately acres. The road will
connect to Arlberg Avenue and be aligned to minimize impact on adjacent
wetlands.

● Alyeska Village Reserve - consists of approximately acres. The reserve is
located northeast of the acre Alyeska Village development site and is intended
as open space for recreational uses such as nature trails, nordic ski trails and
nordic ski center.

4.5.5 Neighborhood and Community Compatibility

Our proposal is to develop residential lots that accommodate a wide range of housing
types including compact housing (attached and detached cottages and
“pocket-neighborhoods”), townhouses, single-family, single-family with adu’s,
two-family and multifamily housing.

The developments described in this proposal integrate the housing needs in a planned
pattern rather than allowing economic segregation by housing type and subdivision. The
master plan will ensure the architectural integrity of each housing type by the creation of
a master homeowner association with Covenants, Codes, and Restriction providing
design standards for exterior elevations, landscaping and pathways but allowing builders
to work with their own building designers. This mix of housing types will provide
opportunity for builders, non-profits, and private parties to participate in and purchase
building lots and tracts which will facilitate faster absorption and creation of more
housing. The goal of this proposal is to create diversity and opportunity for additional
members of the real estate and building industry who might not otherwise be provided
with this opportunity. Girdwoods existing housing is eclectic and creative, offering
improved building lots to several designers and builders will continue the variety of style
that provides Girdwood with its character.

We are proposing to rezone areas of Holtan Hills in order to allow density closer to the
town center and in areas easier to extend utilities and services needed for compact and
efficient housing types. New developments will utilize the National Historic Iditarod
Trail to connect new housing with the school and town center and a new connector trail is
proposed to connect the town center with proposed development sites and the hotel base
area.

27



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

Development of the Alyeska Village development site in partnership with the owners and
operators of Alyeska Resort will ensure a continuity of services, design aesthetic and
phasing which will allow the existing and new base areas to be master planned in a way
that best serves visitors and users of the resort. Pomeroy Property Development,Ltd. is
currently in the process of preparing a Master plan for the Alyeska Resort and their base
area properties.

4.5.6 Circulation Plans

Reference Concept site plans and a phasing plan is included in Appendix B. Pedestrian
connectivity will utilize the existing National Historic Iditarod Trail as a pedestrian, bike
and ski connector from the Holtan Hill Neighborhoods to the Town Center, School and
established recreational trails in the Crow Creek and California Creek areas.

A community connector trail connecting Alyeska Resort with Holtan Hills and the Town
Center is proposed as a community amenity. implementation of this connector will
require partnership and funding from multiple governmental and community
organizations.

4.5.7 Project Timeline

Holtan Hill Neighborhood Timeline

Based on a successful award of the project the following items will need to be complete
prior to start of construction:

● Formalize Partnership Agreements
● Enter into Development Agreement with the MOA/HLB
● Renewal of the Crow Creek Area Plan
● Rezone approval
● Wetland delineation and USACE permit approval
● Site survey - topo and geotech
● Plat Approval

Upon successful completion and approval of these items we will be prepared to start
construction  following  plat approval, depending on the time of year.

Construction of each phase will be  days.

28



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

Prior to start of construction the lots will be marked for sale and fully refundable
reservation agreements can be made.

After sale of 50% of the current phase construction of subsequent phases will begin.

Alyeska Village Timeline

Based on a successful award of the project and the approvals listed below, construction of
the Alyeska Village access road will begin in .

● Approval of the Title 21 development master plan,
● Approval of all permits for the site access road, and
● Plat approval for the 27 acres development site

Internal site improvements will be scheduled based on the findings and recommendations
of the Alyeska Resort Master Plan prepared by the SE Group and Girdwood area housing
study and recommendations prepared by McKinley Research Group.

29



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

APPENDIX A
FIRM PROFILES AND RESUMES





Between the acquisition of the Alyeska Resort and the Development of the Alyeska
Nordic Spa, no one has invested more in the Girdwood Valley in recent past. This
capital investment illustrates Pomeroy’s commitment to its belief in the Girdwood Valley
as a great place to invest and believes that its organizational experience and
best-in-class corporate culture will make it a great partner for the Municipality of
Anchorage in its pursuit of improving Girdwood as a place to live and play.

DEVELOPMENT TEAM
I. INTERNAL TEAM EXPERIENCE

Since 1993, Pomeroy has completed over $400M of construction projects including the
new-build development of nearly 30 hotels.

● Ryan Pomeroy – Chief Executive Officer
o Ryan maintains the company vision and strategy and steers the overall

direction of the Pomeroy Lodging with the oversight that is balance sheet
centric. He is focused on building relationships with corporate and
community stakeholders; leading capital restructuring; and directs asset
sales and acquisitions.

o Ryan officially joined the company in 2006 and has lead the company
since 2007.

o Ryan will be deeply involved in the planning and design of the
development.

● Ryan Laurie – Director of Asset Management
o Manages many of Pomeroy’s relationship with external stakeholders

including, investors, lenders, brands and landlords while also playing a key
role in all transactions.

o Significant acquisition and renovation having direct involvement in many
of Canada’s largest hotel transactions in recent years.

o Joined Pomeroy as the Director of Asset Management in 2017.

2



o Ryan will manage the relationship with the investment partners and
support any processes with municipal administration.

● Nicholas Cheveldave – Director of Project Management & Construction
o Leads all new construction projects and large-scale renovation projects

managing all contractor relationships, construction timelines and
communication with internal stakeholders to ensure a smooth transition
from construction to operations.

o Has been working in construction leadership roles for Pomeroy for over 11
years, leading several new build projects in that time, and a number of
large-scale property renovations.

o Nicholas will be deeply involved in the planning and design process of the
development working with partners to provide assistance in managing
contractors working on the construction of the project.

● Mandy Hawes – General Manager of the Alyeska Resort
o Mandy manages all aspects of the operations at the Resort with all

major department heads reporting into her and is also the primary
contact for ownership

o A local resident of Girdwood, Mandy has been very involved in the
community over the past 20 years while working at the Resort; serving
as a Treasurer for Glacier Valley Transit for 11 years, serving as a
member of the Girdwood Public Safety Board for three years while also
diligently attending any public meetings involving community matters

o Outside of the Resort, Mandy is also involved in municipal and
state-level tourism organizations, currently serving on the Visit
Anchorage Board and Alaska Tourism Industry Association Marketing
Committee.

o Mandy will serve as a key Pomeroy ownership representative on the
ground in Girdwood throughout the RFP and Development process and
will serve as a vital conduit between ownership and the local
community.

3



II. EXTERNAL TEAM EXPERIENCE
Prior to the release of the Request for Proposals, Pomeroy management had already
sought out the assistance of third-party service providers to Master Plan the lands
currently owned by Pomeroy in Girdwood. This process is ongoing, however the work
being completed by the two groups will be invaluable in determining the highest and
best use for the RFP lands.

● SE Group – Resort Master Planners
o As the first consulting firm to focus on the planning, design and

operation of ski areas, SE Group evolved into an internationally
recognized innovator and leader in the mountain resort industry. Since
that time, they have worked on thousands of mountain resort
projects—in the United Stated and across the globe.

o Having completed the Resort Master Planning on behalf of previous
ownership, Pomeroy engaged SE Group based on their familiarity with
Girdwood and Alyeska Resort to perform Base Area Planning &
Design, Multi-Season Recreation Planning, Market & Economic Analysis
and Project Implementation for the lands already owned by the
Resort and Managed by Pomeroy.

o With the extensive portfolio of excess land currently owned by the
Resort, SE Group has also involved their Community Planning team in
the Resort Master Planning process bringing together an integrated
team of planners, designers, permitting and financial experts, to help
unlock the Resorts potential and maximize opportunities for both
Girdwood residents and visitors.

o SE Group has an extensive Portfolio of Experience including;
▪ Deer Valley Resort
▪ Town of Snowmass Village Parks, Open Space, Trails and

Recreation Plan
▪ Arkansas River Corridor Master Plan
▪ Jackson Hole Mountain Resort

o In 2004, SE Group was hired by the National Development Council
(NDC) as a subcontractor to its work with the Heritage Land Bank on a
study of the Glacier-Winner Creek area. The study looked primarily at

4



the potential for ski resort development. This work included some
high-level assessment of the region’s terrain and natural resource
issues and conceptually explored a program for year-round resort
uses. The conceptual program considered skiing, golf, Nordic uses,
and broader outdoor recreation and associated development. This
study built upon early work that SE Group has completed for the
Alaska Department of Natural Resource (ADNR) in 1992 to evaluate
regional ski resort opportunities for the Turnagain Arm Management
Plan (TAMP).

o The Team from SE Group working on the Alyeska Master Plan is led by;
▪ Claire Humber: Claire helps resort operators and developers

conceive, plan and bring to life ski and mountain resorts that
balance customer delight and loyalty, distinctiveness,
operational efficiency, and cost-effectiveness. She combines
systems thinking, wide-ranging experience, an abiding
commitment to the ski industry, and expertise in creating focus
and consensus to help clients make the most of what’s in place
today, while building for a future that’s likely to be significantly
different from the past. Claire has been with SE Group for over
20 years and has led both large and small resort projects
throughout Canada and the United States, Scandinavia,
Iceland, Korea and Japan.

▪ Mark Kane: Mark helps communities defined by outdoor
recreation, the rural lifestyle, and tourism unlock and maximize
economic, environmental, aesthetic, and recreational
character—and potential—through community and land use
planning, permitting, and entitlement. Mark brings together
deep community planning expertise; an intuitive and informed
understanding of how to bring together diverse communities for
long term consensus and gain; and a profound commitment to
helping small communities find, articulate, tap into, and retain
what makes them special. He brings nearly 20 years of
experience in environmental and land use planning and
analysis to the SE Group team.

5



o While the work that SE Group is completing for the Resort will not be
complete in time for the submission of the RFP response, Pomeroy
believes that their expertise in Resort and Community Master Planning
would be invaluable in determining the highest and best use for the
RFP lands. Pomeroy also expects that while SE will not issue a Master
Plan until late in Q3 2021, the thoughtfulness behind their approach
will be appreciated by locals in Girdwood and reduce the risk for
contention. Further, their involvement in the Planning of the Resort
Lands and RFP Lands will ensure a contiguous development and
reduce the risk of disjointed development in Girdwood and at the
Resort base.

● Mckinley Research - Alaska’s most experienced full-service research and
consulting firm

o Mckinley provides a full range of professional services and has
performed hundreds of customized economic analyses including
economic impact studies, economic profiles, economic forecasts,
cost-of-living research, population and employment studies, and
economic modeling for industries, communities and regions.

o Pomeroy engaged Mckinley in congruence with its Master Planning
efforts specifically to identify opportunities in real estate
development with the intent of determining what type of residential
real estate is in the most demand in Girdwood.

o Mckinley’s scope of work for Pomeroy includes:
▪ Developing a housing inventory of Girdwood; compiling

assessor data to determine the existing units, type, assessed
value, age of structure and other descriptive data to
understand what type of residential real estate has seen the
greatest investment in recent past.

▪ Reviewing Anchorage Real Estate Market Conditions; The real
estate market in Anchorage has been strong despite
declining population over the past seven years. With
increasingly overlapping markets, identifying market
dynamics in Anchorage can inform investment decisions in

6



Girdwood. The pandemic-driven shift to work-from-home is
likely to persist, potentially positioning Girdwood as an
attractive place to reside for Anchorage’s life-style oriented
professional workforce.

▪ Survey of Local Residents; Girdwood is a high-potential market
for relocation buyers. The survey will be instrumental in
gauging interest in new housing opportunities in Girdwood in
general, and in services and amenities that might make
Girdwood/Alyeska a more appealing place to reside, and
other aspects of market demand. The survey would probe for
interest in residential development opportunities, as well as
other information about their impressions of
Girdwood/Alyeska as a place to visit and potentially invest.

o Jim Calvin is leading Mckinley’s work on the Girdwood Real Estate
study. Jim is the firm’s senior economic analyst, with specialties
including economic and socioeconomic impact analyses,
cost/benefit analyses, business feasibility studies, community
economic planning, and local, regional, and statewide economic
profiles. Since joining the firm in 1986, he has conducted
socioeconomic impact analyses for a broad range of Alaska
resource development projects and industries including seafood,
tourism, oil and mining industries. Jim has also conducted
community-level business and economic modeling and analyses in
Anchorage, Fairbanks, the Kenai Peninsula Borough, Kodiak, the
Northwest Arctic Borough, the Southwest Alaska region, Cordova,
Valdez, and virtually every community in Southeast Alaska.

o Similar to SE Group, Mckinley’s research will not be complete until
after the RFP response is required, however the information that the
study will yield should prove to be extremely useful in determining the
development best suited for the RFP lands.

7



III. EVIDENCE OF THE TEAM’S ABILITY TO DELIVER
Over the years, Pomeroy Lodging has completed over $400M of construction projects.
Pomeroy has executed on several complex developments in recent past that would
prove out the team’s ability;

The Renovation of the Pomeroy Kananaskis Mountain Lodge

In September of 2015, Pomeroy acquired the Delta Lodge at Kananaskis, a resort in the
Canadian Rockies that was built for the 1988 Winter Olympics in Calgary and hosted
the 2002 G8 summit.

Over the years, the previous ownership group had
invested almost no capital, allowing front-of-house,
back-of-house, mechanical and infrastructural facilities
to tire to pieces.

Shortly after closing on the acquisition of the Resort,
Pomeroy embarked on a $45M renovation of the
nearly 30-year old facility. The renovation included an overhaul of every guest-facing

part of the resort; rooms, lobby, restaurants, meeting
space and exterior while also addressing many of the
back-of-house areas; kitchens, front office and staff
housing. Throughout this entire renovation, the hotel
remained open and operating.

Since executing on the renovation of the hotel, the
Resort’s revenues have grown over 50% from

pre-acquisition levels.

Development of the Pomeroy Inn & Suites Prince George

Prince George is one of the largest cities in Northern
British Columbia, Canada and is a market the
Pomeroy had sought to develop a hotel in for a
number of years. In 2015, the perfect site was
identified. Pomeroy assembled a parcel of land,
which was owned by the City of Prince George and

8





for two-and-a-half months, Pomeroy soldiered on with the development of the Alyeska
Nordic Spa, illustrating its commitment investment in the Girdwood Valley and the
Resort Locale. The Alyeska Nordic Spa is set to open in August of 2021 and while this is
admittedly later than the original targeted open date, construction on the spa never
stopped after the initial lull at the outset of the pandemic. Pomeroy’s willingness and
ability to build what will be a state-of-the-art facility during the most significant
downturn in the Alaska hospitality industry ever should provide the HLB and the
Municipality the comfort that any future bumps in the road will not stop the organization
from pursuing the development of the RFP Lands.

III. PROOF OF FINANCING
In recent past, Pomeroy has executed on a number of asset and portfolio transactions
requiring greater equity funding than what it anticipates will be required to execute on
the Girdwood Residential Land Developments.

● In 2015, Pomeroy acquired the Delta Lodge at Kananaskis which required total
funding of $30M

● In 2017, Pomeroy, through one of its subsidiaries, acquired a portfolio of three
hotels at a cost of approximately $45M

● In 2018, Pomeroy executed on the acquisition of the Alyeska Resort which
required more then $50M of capital

● Through 2020 and 2021, Pomeroy has managed to fund the development of the
Alyeska Nordic Spa at a cost of approximately $15M

The Pomeroy Group of Companies is privately held and has audited financials available
however they have not been included in the submission package. In the event that
Pomeroy is selected to participate in the next round of assessment and due diligence, it
would be willing to provide select financial information to the Municipality.

10







 

 
EXCELLENCE IN CIVIL ENGINEERING SINCE 1982 • SITE PLANNING • CIVIL ENGINEERING DESIGN • PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

various governmental agencies during the review, approval and construction phase of a project.  This 
experience is integral to the completion of a successful project that starts with good design.  Mr. 
Marcott has earned the respect and confidence of his clients, the approving agencies and the 
contracting community by providing professional project services on time and in budget. 

 
Jan 2018 – Present  Triad Engineering, LLC, Anchorage, AK – Managing Member 
 

Responsibilities include principal engineering duties, client correspondence and reporting, handling of 
project deadlines, budgeting, and various managerial tasks. All previous responsibilities with Triad 
Engineering remain continuous.  

 
May 2006 – Dec 2017  Triad Engineering, Anchorage, AK - Employee 

 
Responsibilities include planning and engineering services for civil design for private and public 
projects.  Experience includes providing public testimony, preparation of project designs, contract 
specifications, feasibility reports, cost estimates and agency approvals.  Projects include design of 
water and sanitary sewer systems, storm drain, street and site improvements for various municipal, 
residential, industrial developments. 
 
Engineering Experience at Triad Engineering (Partial list) – 

         Commercial 
Creekside Town Square, EIT – 2007, Wasilla, Alaska  
Regal Cinema, EIT – 2009, Anchorage, Alaska 
PIP Printing, PE - 2013, Anchorage, Alaska 
PIP North Warehouse, PE – 2017, Anchorage, Alaska 
Aptel Hotel, PE - 2014, Anchorage, Alaska 
Staples, PE - 2010, Anchorage, Alaska 
Moma Office Building, PE - 2011, Anchorage, Alaska 
Southgate, PE - 2014, Anchorage, Alaska 
PetSmart, EIT - 2009, Anchorage, Alaska 
Recycled Properties, PE – 2017, Anchorage, Alaska 

             Residential 
  Powder Ridge, EIT & PE – 2005 to 2012, Eagle River, Alaska 

Eagle Crossing, PE - 2012, Eagle River, Alaska 
  Potter Highlands, PE – 2013 to 2017, Anchorage, Alaska 

Eagle Pointe, EIT & PE - 2007, 2012 to 2014, Eagle River, Alaska 
Palamanui, 2007 to 2008, Kailua-Kona, Hawaii 
The Terraces, PE – 2010 to 2016, Anchorage, Alaska  

  West Park, EIT & PE – 2009 to 2014, Anchorage, Alaska 
  O’Brien Street, PE - 2014, Anchorage, Alaska  
  Gray Hawk, PE - 2014, Anchorage, Alaska  
  Willow View Subdivision, PE - 2014, Anchorage, Alaska 
  Powder View, PE - 2014, Eagle River, Alaska         
  East Halls Lake, 2012, Lynwood, Washington 
  Vista Rose Phase 1 & 2, PE – 2014 to 2017, Wasilla, Alaska 

              Multi-Family Residential 
  Snow Raven Condominiums, PE - 2012, Girdwood, Alaska 

Whisperwood Commons, EIT – 2008 to 2009, Anchorage, Alaska 
Coronado Park, EIT - 2010, Eagle River, Alaska 



 

 
EXCELLENCE IN CIVIL ENGINEERING SINCE 1982 • SITE PLANNING • CIVIL ENGINEERING DESIGN • PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

  Clearwater, PE - 2013, Anchorage, Alaska 
  Chester Lloyd, PE - 2013, Anchorage, Alaska  
  Nadine Condos, PE - 2014, Anchorage, Alaska 
  Discovery Park, PE - 2012, Anchorage, Alaska  
  Moonrise Ridge, PE - 2013, Anchorage, Alaska 
  Sonoma Glen, PE - 2012, Anchorage, Alaska  
  Parkway Townhomes, PE - 2015, Anchorage, Alaska  

Bella Terra, PE - 2015, Anchorage, Alaska 
Willow View Lots, PE - 2015, Anchorage, Alaska 

 Mill Bay Townhomes, PE - 2017, Kodiak, Alaska 
 

Summers ’04 - ‘05 AK Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (ADOT&PF), Anchorage, AK    
 

Responsibilities included site inspection, contract administration and civil design for public projects. 
Experience includes review of construction plans and documents and coordination with contractor.  
Design projects include analysis of existing public facilities against ADA compliance and subsequent 
redesign for conformance. 

 
Summer 2003 A. W. Murfitt Co., Anchorage, AK    

 
Responsibilities included field inspection, soil/pavement sampling and subsequent lab testing.  
Experience includes lab testing, data collection and soils log compilation as well as report review. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CRW Mike Jokela • 1 

MICHAEL L. JOKELA, PLS 
Senior Principal/Land Surveyor 

Mike  is  a  Senior  Principal  and  project  manager  for  CRW, 

overseeing  design  surveys,  right‐of‐way  (ROW)  mapping,  land 

development, platting, and construction surveying projects. His 38 

years of survey experience  includes work as a survey crew chief, 

survey technician, engineering designer, land planner, and survey 

manager. Mike’s hands‐on surveying knowledge contributes to his 

expert  oversight  of  the  CRW  survey  teams.  He  has  worked  on 

numerous Municipality of Anchorage (MOA), Alaska Department 

of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOT&PF), governmental, and land development 

projects. He has been managing survey projects throughout the state for over 20 years. 

A longtime Alaskan resident, Mike joined CRW in 2006.  

PROJECT EXPERIENCE  

Municipality of Anchorage Projects   
Since  2012,  Mike  has  provided  surveys  for  over  80  municipal  transportation,  land 
development, and drainage projects through our firm’s survey term contract. He works 
directly  with  the  Municipal  Surveyor,  planners,  and  project  managers,  and  is 
responsible for contract and project management, cost estimating, supervision of field 
and office  staff, survey  computations, platting, and quality control. Mike  is currently 
managing CRW’s second survey term contract with PM&E. Sample projects include:    

Municipal Light and Power ‐ 

Anchorage Water and Wastewater 

Utility Facility Subdivision ‐ Boundary 
survey, subdivision plat, utility 
surveying, easements. 

Potter Heights Tract C Rezone ‐
Property rezone from PLI to R6. 

35th and McRae Parcel 25 Record of 
Survey ‐ Plat to document MOA 
property rights. 

Senate District N Monuments ‐ 
Replace monuments and complete 
Record of Survey. 

82nd Avenue Storm Drain ‐ Design 
survey and plan and profile drawings.  

Tudor Centre Drive Lighting ‐ Design, 
unmanned aerial vehicle, and ROW 
survey along with easement parcel 
maps. 

Sylvan Drive Drainage Improvements ‐ 
Design survey and plan and profile 
drawings. 

 

Romig Park Re‐Plat ‐ Design and 
boundary survey and subdivision 
platting. 

Muldoon Estates Re‐Plat ‐ Boundary, 
platting, topographic, and utility 
survey. 

Providence Drive Stream Culvert 
Repair Project ‐ Design survey and 
easement parcel maps, legal 
descriptions.     

Northern Lights Boulevard 
Emergency Culvert Repair Project ‐ 
Design survey, ROW research, and 
determination and mapping. 

11th & 12th Avenue Reconstruction ‐ 
Design survey and plan and profile 
drawings. 

78th Avenue Upgrade ‐ Design survey 
and plan and profile drawings. 

E. 20th Avenue Pedestrian 
Improvements ‐ Design survey and 
plan and profile drawing. 

 

 

 

EDUCATION 

Surveying and Mapping, 
University of Alaska 
Anchorage & Anchorage 
Community College 

REGISTRATION 

Professional Land Surveyor, 
Alaska  (AELL7839) 

RESIDENCY 

Alaska 

PROFESSIONAL 
AFFILIATIONS 
Alaska Society of 
Professional Land Surveyors, 
Member  

REFERENCES 
Steve Schmitt, PLS 
MOA Surveyor                            
907.343.8366 

Russ Oswald, PE, PLS 
Project Engineer MOA 
PM&E                               
907.343.8196 

Donna Brechan, PLS                
MOA  
Survey/ROW                              
907.343.8219 

David Whitfield               
MOA  
Senior Planner/Platting 
Officer                       
907.343.8329 

VOLUNTEER & 
EXTRACURRICULAR  

Volunteer Coach Nordic Ski 
Association ‐ Anchorage 

 

 



CRW Mike Jokela • 2 

Site Development Projects 
Mike’s Survey Manager responsibilities include cost estimates, project management, supervision of field and office staff, 
survey computations, and quality control. 

Residential Subdivision Projects – (Other Firm Experience) 
Mike’s  responsibilities  as  Lead  Surveyor/Manager  on  the  following  projects  located  in  Anchorage  included  project 
management, subdivision design, platting, utility coordination, supervision of  field and office staff, survey calculations, 
review of construction drawings, and quality control.  

CIRI Fireweed Campus ‐ Design survey and ALTA Survey for 
new building. 

Turnagain  Elementary  School  ‐  Design  survey  for  site 
improvements. 

Bass Pro Shop ‐ Design Survey and Re‐plat to accommodate 
building addition. 

Abbott Loop Christian Center ‐ Re‐plat and design survey for 
site improvements.  

Gladys Wood Elementary ‐ Design survey for school addition 
and improvements. 

Airport  Heights  Elementary  School  ‐  Design  surveying  for 
school site improvements. 

Wonder  Park  Elementary  School  ‐  Design  survey  for  site 
improvements. 

Central Middle School Improvements ‐ Design survey for site 
improvements. 

Girdwood K8 Expansion ‐ Re‐Plat and design survey for new 
school addition. 

ML&P Power Plant Expansion ‐ Design survey and utility as‐
builts for construction of new municipal power plant. 

Blood Bank of Alaska  ‐ Design Survey and Pre‐construction 
ALTA Survey for this new Anchorage facility.    

Valdez Middle School ‐ Design survey for new school addition 
and site improvements. 

Napaskiak Replacement School ‐ Topographic and boundary 
survey for new school. 

Huffman  Elementary  ‐  Design  Survey  for  parking  and  bus 
circulation improvements. 

East High  School  Synthetic Turf  ‐  Design  survey  for  sports 
field improvements. 

Powder  Ridge  School  Site  ‐  Re‐plat  of  large  land  tract  for 
acquisition of new school.  

Olive Garden ‐ Commercial re‐plat and design survey for this 
new chain restaurant. 

Bethel Regional School ‐ Design survey and utility surveys for 
site improvements. 

SkyHills  Subdivision  ‐  Subdivision  design  and  platting, 
construction surveying, home plot plans and as‐builts. 

Whisperwood  Condominiums  ‐  Subdivision  platting, 
construction  surveying, building plot plans and  final  as‐
builts. 

Chester Park Senior Housing ‐ Subdivision platting, ALTA 
survey and construction surveying. 

Westpark  Subdivision  ‐  Subdivision  platting,  volume 
calculations  for  mass  re‐grading  and  construction 
surveying.    

Prominence Pointe Subdivision ‐ Subdivision design and 
platting, construction surveying, home plot plans and as‐
builts.  

Goldenview Park Subdivision  ‐  Lot  design and platting, 
construction surveying, home plot plans and as‐builts.  

Sahalee Subdivision  ‐ Subdivision  platting,  construction 
surveying, home plot plans and as‐builts.  

The  Terraces  Subdivision  ‐  Boundary  survey,  subdivision 
design concepts, topographic surveying, and platting.  

Potter  Glen  Subdivision  ‐  Subdivision  platting  and 
construction surveying. 

Powder  Ridge  Subdivision  ‐  Boundary  survey,  subdivision 
platting, construction surveying, plot plans and as‐builts.     

Stratford Glen Subdivision ‐ Subdivision design and platting, 
construction surveying, home plot plans and as‐builts.  

Spruce  Meadows  Subdivision  ‐  Subdivision  design  and 
platting,  construction  surveying,  home  plot  plans  and  as‐
builts.  

Autumn Ridge Subdivision ‐ Subdivision design, construction 
surveying, home plot plans and as‐builts. 

Delong Landing Subdivision ‐ Subdivision design and platting, 
construction surveying, home plot plans and as‐builts.  

Mercedes of Anchorage  ‐  Re‐plat  and  design  surveying  for 
new building. 



CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

APPENDIX B
CONCEPT SITE PLAN





CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

APPENDIX C
BUDGETS















CY Investments, LLC
Seth Andersen, P.E.

APPENDIX D
DESIGN STYLES & STANDARDS



Example of a Single Family Home

Example of Single Family Home with Attached ADU



Example of Townhome Style Four-Plex

Example of Four-Plex Condos



Example of Mixed Used Development for Alyeska Village



















































 

1 

DATE: October 24, 2022 
 
TO: Girdwood Board of Supervisors: gbos@muni.org 
   
CC: Adam Trombley: Adam.Trombley@anchorageak.gov 

Connie Yoshimura, CY Investments: cyoshimura@gci.net 
Heritage Land Bank and HLBAC Commissioners: hlb@anchorageak.gov 

 
FR: Holtan Hills Housing Advisory Committee, Sam Daniel and Emma Kramer, Co-chairs 
 
The Holtan Hills Housing Advisory Committee (HHHAC) was initiated at the request of the 
Girdwood Board of Supervisors on July 5, 2022. The purpose of this committee was to research 
the project, investigate the details, and make a recommendation to the GBOS for final action.   
 
Since July 5 the seven-member committee has met formally together on 9 occasions and has 
sent representatives to meet with Adam Trombley and CY Investments twice. Our goal was to 
influence the disposal agreement to ensure that local housing needs are intentionally addressed 
in this proposed sale of public land in Girdwood, through mechanisms that impact the HLB, 
rather than the developer. These were the following: 
  

1. Transfer of land plots within the Holtan Hills development to a non-profit agency such as 
the Girdwood Community Land Trust, or Girdwood Inc.  This land would be appropriate 
sized and zoned for a housing development to be implemented that would help meet the 
work force housing needs. 

2. Seed money in the amount of $500,000.  This money would come from the profits 
realized by the MOA/HLB rather than CY investments.  The transfer of this money would 
not need to go through the Girdwood of Supervisors but rather the entity that took control 
of the deeded land.  

3. Deed restrictions to a percentage of the land sold.  These deed restrictions would be 
shaped to have the homes be primary residences rather than vacation rental homes. 
Through discussion with the developer this item was seen as a much larger topic to 
address in the very short timeline that we are presented with. 

 
In reviewing the 2006 Crow Creek Neighborhood Land Use Plan, the committee found direction 
regarding establishment of a housing authority or non-profit entity focused on housing (Page 
33).  Since the HLB/MOA is now following the Crow Creek Neighborhood plan, these asks from 
our community are within the parameters set by this land use plan. 
 
The ideas of land/seed money from HLB at closing seemed the most likely options to pursue at 
the conclusion of the meeting. The formal response from Mr. Trombley, however, focused on 
the current lack of an entity to receive land/seed money, and did not address the potential of 
such a transfer were an entity established. The HHHAC has been advised that a broader 
statement regarding the potential is to be expected. We are eager to receive a response that 
includes ideas on how to make such a transaction guaranteed for our community.   

mailto:gbos@muni.org
mailto:Adam.Trombley@anchorageak.gov
mailto:cyoshimura@gci.net
mailto:hlb@anchorageak.gov


 

2 

 
There is still time; we believe that any substantive discussion requires that the Municipality of 
Anchorage and Heritage Land Bank join with us in solution-based discussions.  The answer to 
Holtan Hills development likely falls well outside of other real estate transactions that the MOA 
has engaged in previously. It will take out of the box thinking, collaboration, and partnership of 
HLB, CY Investments, and the community.  
 
In conclusion the HHHAC does not support the Holtan Hills Development in its current form. 
The HHHAC sees that there is tremendous potential for the development of Holtan Hills for 
Girdwood, not only as a tax source, but also as a way for people to participate fully in our 
school, culture and community.  Although the committee is discouraged by the tone and lack of 
assistance by the MOA/HLB thus far, we stand by to re-engage at any time. We would 
appreciate meeting as a committee with Mr. Trombley prior to any final decisions being made. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HLB  
2023 Feb 
Packet https://www.muni.org/Departments/hlb/SiteAssets/Pages/HLBCommission/HLBAC20230223_Pa
cket.pdf 
2024 Work Plan 
https://www.muni.org/Departments/hlb/SiteAssets/Pages/HLBCommission/2024_HLBWorkPlan_PUBLI
CDRAFT.pdf 
 
Italics 6-018 means in 5 year work Plan:   
pg 16 Work with Cemetery Subcommittee to pursue funding and transfer of property to GVSA. 
Place time limit on hold for Girdwood cemetery before this parcel is made available for private 
operators. 
 
Edit to read: Consider transfer of management to the responsible Municipal Dept, i.e. 
Parks. Land that has a future identified purpose should be transferred to another 
Municipal Department. The Girdwood Cemetery Committee is beyond ‘formulating a 
design’ step in the current process. The Cemetery Projects are in process to be up for 
bonding in April 2024 election. Once the ordinance is adopted, we recommend that 
parcel 6-018 be withdrawn from the HLB inventory and transferred to MOA Parks and 
Rec who will manage the areawide cemetery power. 
 
pg 16 Girdwood Trails Plan Implementation: 
Update to read where the GTP is currently.  If Assembly approves by February 9, read to state the 
Assembly has approved the GTP and date. Or suggest to read that the Work program be amended upon 
approval of Assembly. 
 
pg 19 Girdwood Area Plan Update 
Clarify that "GAP" is the Comprehensive Plan for Girdwood, and future HLB plans and policies need to be 
consistent with this Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Also add suggestion: 

Girdwood Housing and Economic Committee recommend the following parcels be made available for 
and disposed to: Girdwood Valley Service Area (Housing and Economic Stability Power) OR Girdwood 
nonprofit OR Girdwood trust:  
GIRDWOOD SOUTH TOWNSITE TR G-6 (HLB 6-076) 
T10N R2E SEC 18 TR 18B (HLB 6-039) 
GIRDWOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TR B (6.5 acre portion of 6-016) 
GIRDWOOD SOUTH TOWNSITE TR D-5 (6-134)  
ALYESKA - PRINCE ADDITION TR G (6-013) 

The Girdwood Housing and Economic Committee recommend that Heritage Land Bank include this 
request and note under each of these parcels on their draft 2024 Annual Work Program and 2025-2029 
5-year Management Plan that Girdwood has expressed a need and desire for these parcels for future 
and expected community land needs. 

https://www.muni.org/Departments/hlb/SiteAssets/Pages/HLBCommission/HLBAC20230223_Packet.pdf
https://www.muni.org/Departments/hlb/SiteAssets/Pages/HLBCommission/HLBAC20230223_Packet.pdf
https://www.muni.org/Departments/hlb/SiteAssets/Pages/HLBCommission/2024_HLBWorkPlan_PUBLICDRAFT.pdf
https://www.muni.org/Departments/hlb/SiteAssets/Pages/HLBCommission/2024_HLBWorkPlan_PUBLICDRAFT.pdf


Girdwood Housing and Economic Committee 

RESOLUTION 2024-01 

Request Girdwood Board of Supervisors (GBOS) for Resolution of Support to 
Request Heritage Land Bank, Municipality of Anchorage Staff & Anchorage 

Assembly to take actions to withdraw or dispose of land in Girdwood for local 
community needs 

WHEREAS, Girdwood has been limited with economic resources, especially when 
involving land, being made available for local community needs, and 

WHEREAS, the land analysis completed for the Girdwood Area Plan and presented to 
the community in October of 2023, has identified a residential land need of 17-41 acres 
over the next 10 years, and 

WHEREAS, the land analysis completed for the Girdwood Area Plan has identified a 
commercial land need of 24 acres, and 

WHEREAS, the Girdwood Housing and Economic Committee has reviewed the various 
parcels since its formation, along with the Heritage Land Bank’s report, and 

WHEREAS, it is often necessary to identify specific parcels when applying for grants, 
and 

WHEREAS, it is diligent to plan the specific locations for where we expect to site these 
future land needs, and 

WHEREAS, we expect to need several pathways to achieving success, especially in 
regards to the creation of affordable, attainable, workforce housing, and 

THEREFORE, Girdwood Board of Supervisors and Girdwood Housing and Economic 
Committee recommend the following parcels be made available for and withdrawn or 
disposed to: Girdwood Valley Service Area (Housing and Economic Stability Power) OR 
Girdwood nonprofit OR Girdwood trust: GIRDWOOD SOUTH TOWNSITE TR G-6 (HLB 
6-076), T10N R2E SEC 18 TR 18B (HLB 6-039), GIRDWOOD ELEMENTARY 
SCHOOL TR B (6.5 acre portion of 6-016), GIRDWOOD SOUTH TOWNSITE TR D-5 
(6-134), ALYESKA - PRINCE ADDITION TR G (6-013). 

BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, Girdwood Housing and Economic Committee requests 
Girdwood Board of Supervisors (GBOS) to recommend that Heritage Land Bank include 
this request and note under each of these parcels on their draft 2024 Annual Work 
Program and 2025-2029 5-year Management Plan that Girdwood has expressed a need 
and desire for these parcels for future and expected community land needs. 

Passed and approved by GHEC by a unanimous vote on this 17th day of January 2024. 

 

 

Brett Wilbanks, GHEC Chair 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E1ED3154-4FC2-47B2-96CA-C134E9F37F4F



Photo Credit: Ron Tenny from HLB Parcel 6-069 
 

Heritage Land Bank Advisory Commission Meeting 
 

Thursday, January 25, 2024 at 1:30PM 
 

Permit & Development Center, Conf. Room 170 
4700 Elmore Road, Anchorage, Alaska 99507 

 

Join via Microsoft Teams - Meeting ID: 263 322 183 869, Passcode: jHGL3p 
Join by Telephone - 907-519-0237, Conference ID: 987 366 530# 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 Call to Order and Statement of Procedure 

 Roll Call, Introductions and Disclosures 

 Approval of Agenda and Minutes 

a. January 25, 2024 Agenda 

b. December 14, 2023 Minutes 

 Director’s Report 

 Proposed Action Items and Public Hearings (No Public Hearing shall extend over 60 minutes without 
an extension by majority vote of the commission. If not extended, Public Hearing may be held open and 
continued to the next meeting if public testimony is not complete.) 

a. Resolution 2024-02: Recommending approval to extend the lease of portions within HLB 
Parcels 4-033A and 4-034, legally described as Tract A Airport Subdivision (Plat 95-05) and E2 
SEC 31 T13N R4W, to the United States Department of Transportation Federal Aviation 
Administration, for fair market value, and to amend the 2023 HLB Annual Work Program. 

 
 Persons or Items Not on the Agenda (THREE minutes per individual, each person may only speak once, 

commissioners and staff will not answer questions, but may have questions for you after your testimony.) 

 Commissioner Comments 

 Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting Date:  Thursday, February 22, 2024 at 1:30pm in the Permit & 
Development Center (4700 Elmore Road 99507) or via Microsoft Teams and telephone. 

 Adjournment   

 
  



Heritage Land Bank Advisory Commission Meeting 
Thursday, December 14, 2023 at 1:30PM 

Permit & Development Center, Conf. Room 170 
4700 Elmore Road, Anchorage, Alaska 99507 

or via Microsoft Teams and Telephone 
 

M I N U T E S 
 

I. Call to Order and Statement of Procedure – Chair Marshall called the mee�ng to order at 
1:32 pm. 
 

II. Roll Call, Introduc�ons and Disclosures 
a. Chair Marshall, Vice Chair Flynn, Commissioners Hansen, Chmielowski, Charnon were 

present. Commissioner Oswald was absent (excused).  A quorum was established. 

b. Staff: Director Briggs, Emma Giboney, Nicole Jones-Vogel, Contractor 
 

III. Approval of Agenda and Minutes 
a. December 12, 2023 Agenda – Commissioner Chmielowski moved; Commissioner 

Charnon seconded and the agenda passed unanimously. 

b. November 16, 2023 Minutes – Commissioner Chmielowski moved; Commissioner 
Charnon seconded and the minutes passed unanimously. 

 
IV. Director’s Report 

Director Briggs welcomed Commissioner Chmielowski who did a brief introduc�on.  Director 
Briggs provided an update on a last open commissioner seat, provided a brief overview of 
the HLB Work Plan next steps, and upcoming January mee�ng ac�on items for two lease 
amendments.  Director Briggs also generally outlined upcoming items that will be before the 
Commission in the next several months. 
 

V. Work Session: Dra� 2024 Annual Work Program & 2025-2029 Five-Year Management Plan 
Staff provided an overview of the ac�vi�es that have occurred to get to this dra� 2024 Work 
Plan with both community and inter-agency input.  Several items were highlighted 
throughout the plan for further discussion.  Chair Marshall requested that discussion 
regarding 1-111 be added to the items to be discussed.   

 



• HLB Parcel 6-011.  Discussion regarding process and �ming were explored.  
Commissioners did not have any substan�al sugges�ons in edits to the dra� plan ahead 
of the public review dra�. 

• HLB Parcel 6-057.  Staff updated the Commissioners regarding efforts towards developing 
a feasibility study for the Girdwood Industrial Park and discussed the addi�onal op�on.  
It was not clear in the plan that the addi�onal op�on, listed as item 2 would be a pla�ng 
ac�on.  That was recommended to be edited for clarity. 

• Girdwood Trails Plan Implementation.  An update was provided on the Girdwood Trails 
Plan.  Several HLB parcels have been iden�fied for trail network expansion in Girdwood.  
Commissioners did not have any substan�al input or ques�ons regarding this item. 

• Policies. Staff drew Commissioner’s at en�on to some text edits to three policy aspects. 

 Work Plan Amendments.  Clarifica�on regarding mid-year work plan amendments in 
tandem with ac�on items. 

 Land Use Permit Fees Table.  An update to fees is proposed to provide clarity to user-
based fees. 

 Sunsetting of Resolutions.  Staff addressed Commissioner comments in 2023 
regarding evalua�on of having a sunset on approved resolu�on if substan�al 
progress has not been made towards the project.  Staff suggested that the preferred 
method to address this concern would be through the resolu�on similar to the 
applica�on of reverter clauses.  Commissioners were agreeable to that approach. 

• HLB Parcel 1-111.  Chair Marshall requested an update of the Eagle River Cemetery.  As 
far as HLB staff is aware, the dra� Work Plan reflects the current interest and status of 
HLB Parcel 1-111 as a poten�al cemetery site depending on funding and other factors. 

 
VI. Persons or Items Not on the Agenda  

No persons to tes�fy. 
 

VII. Commissioner Comments 
Chair Marshall thanked staff for their hard work on the dra� Work Plan. 
 

VIII. Next Regularly Scheduled Mee�ng Date 
Thursday, January 25, 2023 at 1:30pm in the Permit & Development Center (4700 Elmore 
Road 99507) or via Microso� Teams and telephone. 
 

IX. Adjournment  
Commissioner Chmielowski moved to adjourn the mee�ng, seconded by Commissioner 
Charnon and the mee�ng adjourned at 2:15 pm. 
 



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE 
 R E A L  E S T A T E  D E P A R T M E N T  
 H E R I T A G E  L A N D  B A N K  

 
P R O J E C T S  U P D A T E  R E P O R T  

January 19, 2024 
 

Pending and Recently Completed Disposals 

• 3-027A – Dowling Substation (HLBAC Res 2022-03, As Amended) 
A Purchase and Sale agreement will be drafted, and documents will be prepared for taking 
this disposal to the Anchorage Assembly for approval. This transaction is anticipated to be 
complete in early 2024. 
 

• 3-078A-D – Lake Otis and Tudor (AO 2022-50; HLBAC Res 2021-01) 
The disposal of these 4 parcels has been under contract since December of 2021. This 
transaction is anticipated to close in the first quarter of 2024. 
 

Pending and Recently Completed Acquisitions 

• 5-041 – Laurel Acres (AO 2023-113; HLBAC Res 2023-01) 
On November 7th, the Assembly approved the acquisition of Lots 41 & 42 of Block 10 of the 
Laurel Acres Subdivision for future wetland mitigation. This transaction is anticipated to close 
in early 2024. 
 

Current & Continuing Projects 

• 2-127-136 – Parcel Transfer to Parks and Recreation 
These parcels will be coming before HLBAC in the coming months with a proposed transfer 
to Parks and Recreation for the creation of a new park. Great Land Trust presented the project 
to the HLBAC in October about the project. The majority of the area is steeply sloped and 
unsuitable for development and would be best suited for recreation purposes. This transfer 
would implement the 2023 HLB Work Plan and PVLUA. The project received a resolution of 
support form the MOA Watershed & Natural Resource Advisory Commission in December. 
 

• 2-156 – Natural Burial Cemetery 
Alaska Natural Burial submitted an application to HLB Staff in August 2022 to use HLB Parcel 
2-156 for a natural burial cemetery. Staff is working with the non-profit and other agencies 
to determine the best path forward.  
 
 



• 5-041 – Laurel Acres Parcel Acquisitions 
HLB Staff sent letters to all property owners in Laurel Acres seeking donations in February of 
2022. Several property owners are considering sale and/or donation to HLB. This is 
anticipated to be a continuing project with parcels coming before HLBAC as they are 
processed. Eight parcels have been acquired since starting the project.  
 

• 6-011 – Glacier Creek Village 
HLB, Alyeska Development Holdings LP, and Seth Andersen entered into a Letter of Intent. 
Alyeska and Andersen have begun preliminary land and site planning, surveying, and 
environmental investigation. As this project progresses HLB Staff will keep HLBAC updated.  
 

• 6-011/16/17 – Holtan Hills  
The Assembly, at their February 7, 2023, regular meeting, voted to indefinitely postpone the 
Holtan Hills disposal. The Request for Proposals, Development Agreement, and Bifurcation 
are still in effect. HLB is continuing work with the State Department of Natural Resource’s to 
vacate the Section Line Easement and with the Planning Department to finalize the 
preliminary plat. On December 19th the Assembly laid an Ordinance on the table for 
introduction that would authorize the disposal. The Public Hearing is scheduled to take place 
at the January 23rd Assembly meeting. 

• 6-057F – Girdwood Industrial Park 
HLB Staff are evaluating options and will present the feasibility of different options to HLBAC 
for guidance in the coming months. Staff gave an update to HLBAC at the September meeting 
to determine what further information would be helpful for making an informed decision on 
the best path forward. Staff will continue to meet with permittees and other stakeholders as 
the project progresses. HLB will provide an update to GBOS at the Municipal Manager 
Quarterly Meeting on January 22. 
 

• 6-076 – Girdwood South Townsite  
HLB Staff are working with Girdwood Community Land Trust in exploring the development 
requirements of HLB Parcel 6-076 for a potential long-term ground lease.  GCLT and HLB Staff 
have a standing monthly meeting to keep communication open and work through items 
related to the disposal of 6-076.  At this time, GCLT is preparing to release a Request for 
Information (RFI) to the development community as part of their due diligence.  We 
anticipate after they have reviewed the information that they will be before the HLBAC with 
an update and overall project presentation. 
 

Administrative and Land Management  

• 2024 Work Plan 
The Public Review Draft of the plan was released for public comment on December 22, 2023. 
The 45-day comment period will close on Friday, February 9, 2024. The HLBAC Public Hearing 
for the 2024 Work Plan is scheduled the regular HLBAC meeting on February 22, 2024.  
   



• Contaminated Site Monitoring  
HLB continues to work with contractors and the State’s Department of Environmental 
Conservation to monitor the contamination at HLB Parcels 3-078A-E.  
 

• Wetland Monitoring 
Routine wetland monitoring occurred during the summer of 2023 in the conservation 
easement areas that are used for wetland mitigation credits. These areas include in Girdwood 
at the end of Arlberg and in Laurel Acres in southwest Anchorage.  
 

• GIS Mapping  
HLB staff works with the MOA Geographic Data & Information Center (GDIC) to routinely 
update public and internal HLB maps with parcel, zoning and wetland information.  
 

• Site Visits & Inspections 
HLB Staff will continue to visit HLB owned parcels in 2024. Real Estate Department Staff is 
working with GDIC to make a georeferenced online form to make inspections more 
streamlined. 
 

• HLB Advisory Commission Appointments 
Applicants for the last available seat are being reviewed. The vacant seat will hopefully be 
before the Assembly for approval in the coming weeks.  

 



Land Use Permits  

 
HLB Permit Issued To Permitted Use Expiration 

2007-08 Girdwood Parks & Recreation Frisbee golf course Renewal 
pending 

2009-13 Girdwood Valley Service Area Equipment & materials storage Renewal 
pending 

2017-10 Alaska Railroad Corporation Avalanche mitigation Renewal 
pending 

2019-08 Girdwood Valley Service Area Park & Ride Renewal 
pending 

2023-01 Ritual Bough Ceremonies 2024-01-31 

2022-04 Girdwood Community Land Trust  Storage 2024-02-10 

2021-07 Turnagain Tree Care Contractor wood lot  2024-02-10 

2023-02 Girdwood Community Land Trust Land and site planning, 
surveying etc. 2024-04-06 

2021-08 AK Seeds of Change Urban farm and job training 2024-05-04 

2017-29 Chugach Powder Guides  Heli-skiing 2024-05-31 

2022-02 Girdwood Equipment Rental Storage 2024-05-31 

2023-07 3 Barons Renaissance Fair, Inc. Storage 2024-05-31 

2020-10 Straight to the Plate Storage 2024-06-01 

2016-21 Silverton Mountain Guides  Heli-skiing 2024-06-30 

2018-13 Alaska Guide Collective Mountain guiding 2024-06-30 

2023-03 AWWU Geotechnical investigation 2024-07-15 

2021-18 Ridgetop Builders Wood mill 2024-08-01 

2018-10 Chugach Powder Guides  Access to Notch Hut 2024-08-31 

2023-05 Alyeska Development Holdings, LP 
and Seth Andersen 

Land and site planning, 
surveying etc. 2024-09-15 

  
List of Permits that were issued or active in 2024. Permits are organized by term expiration. 



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE 
R E A L  E S T A T E  D E P A R T M E N T  
H E R I T A G E  L A N D  B A N K  

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
HLBAC Resolution: 2024-02 

Action: Disposal by lease 

Hearing Date: January 25, 2024 

Subject Property: HLB Parcels 4-033A and 4-034, legally described as Tract A Airport Subdivision (Plat 
95-5) and E2 SEC 31 T13N R4W (PID 010-401-27; 010-401-09). 

Prepared By: Nicole Jones-Vogel, AICP, HLB Contractor 

 S U M M A R Y  

Proposal Summary: The Municipality of Anchorage and United States of America/Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) for a 5-year lease extension, at fair market value, and to amend the 2023 HLB Annual 
Work Program. 

Applicable Regulations & Standards:  AMC § 25.40.025A, 25.40.025B, and 25.40.025.F.2 provide authority 
for this disposal by lease. 

2023 Work Program Amendment Required: Yes. Although the lease is listed in the work plan, extending the 
lease was not identified; therefore, an amendment is required (AMC § 25.40.020.B).  

Summary Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of this resolution (Appendix B). 

 B A C K G R O U N D  I N F O R M A T I O N  

Parcel Locations: HLB parcels 4-033A and 4-034 are located in West Anchorage on the west end of the Ted 
Stevens Anchorage International Airport (TSAIA) runway. (Appendix A) 

Parcel and Lease Area Size: The proposed lease extension is for approximately 9.01 acres that includes the 
beacon site area along with the access drive.  

Existing Condition and Land Use of the parcel and surrounding area:  The leased area is developed as a non-
directional beacon (NDB) site, secured with a fence, and accessed via a gravel road (also included in the 
lease). Adjacent to this site is the TSAIA Airport, The Salvation Army Clitheroe Center, and the Tony Knowles 
Coastal Trail. 

Zoning: TR Transition Zoning  

Adopted Land Use Plan:  West Anchorage District Plan (July, 2012) designates the area as a Parks and Natural 
Resource with an overlay of Major Transportation Facility on a portion of the parcels as an Alternative Land 
Use Classification.  

 

 



 P U B L I C  N O T I C E  

As per AMC § 25.40.030, public notice procedures were followed for the proposed action. A sign was posted 
on the property on Thursday, January 11, 2024. Notices were mailed to the 84 property owners within at 
least 500 feet of 4-033A and 4-034 Thursday, January 11, 2024. The HLBAC meeting agenda with this action 
item and public hearing was posted on the Municipal Meetings website, Boards and Commissions website, 
the HLB website, and emailed out to the applicable community councils and regular HLB mailing list on 
Thursday, January 11, 2024.  

 P R O J E C T  D E S C R I P T I O N  

This lease is an extension of an expired lease that is currently continuing on a Holdover Clause between the 
Municipality of Anchorage and the U.S. Department of Transportation/Federal Aviation Administration (FAA). The 
FAA leased this area from the Municipality since 1976, with the most recent lease began in 2017. Prior to the 
MOA lease, FAA received authorizations from the State of Alaska Department of Natural Resources.  
 
The proposed action is for a non-competitive lease of portions within HLB Parcels 4-033A and 4-034, legally 
described as Tract A Airport Subdivision (Plat 95-5) and E2 SEC 31 T13N R4W. For the past forty-seven years, the 
FAA has maintained a non-directional beacon (NDB) site and an access road at the location depicted on the 
attached map. The area occupied is approximately 9.01 acres. 
 
It is anticipated that this will be the last renewal of this lease as the beacon is being decommissioned and the site 
will be restored by 2026. The existing NDB, which has provide added safety elements for aircraft, is just west of 
the Ted Stevens Anchorage International Airport (ANC) property fence, off the west end of the east/west runway. 
Access to the site is available from the frontage road which runs along the perimeter of the ANC. The NDB is 
approximately 500 feet east of the Tony Knowles Coastal Trail. The cleared site is surrounded by a dense cover of 
natural vegetation.  

 A N A L Y S I S  A N D  C O N C L U S I O N  

The purpose of this lease extension is to continue the use of the site as a non-directional beacon. This lease 
is consistent with the mission of the HLB and it is in the best interest of the Municipality to extend the lease 
for this aircraft safety equipment. 

 A G E N C Y  R E V I E W  

An agency review was conducted engaging MOA departments and applicable external agencies.  As of the 
date of this staff report, no comments have been received. 

 R E C O M M E N D A T I O N  

Staff recommends approval of this lease extension and an amendment to the 2023 HLB Work Plan.  

Appendices: 
A – Vicinity Map 
B – Resolution 2024-02 
  



Appendix A – Vicinity Map 
 

 
  



Appendix B – Resolution 2024-02 
 

HERITAGE LAND BANK ADVISORY COMMISSION 

HLBAC Resolution 2024-02 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE HERITAGE LAND BANK ADVISORY COMMISSION RECOMMENDING ASSEMBLY 
APPROVAL OF THE DISPOSAL BY LEASE, AT FAIR MARKET VALUE, TO THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION/FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION OF PORTIONS WITHIN HLB PARCELS 4-033A 
AND 4-034, LEGALLY DESCRIBED AS TRACT A AIRPORT SUBDIVISION (PLAT 95-5) AND E2 SEC 31 T13N R4W 
AND TO AMEND THE 2023 HLB ANNUAL WORK PROGRAM. 
 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to AMC § 25.40.010, the Heritage Land Bank (HLB) was established to manage 
uncommitted municipal land and the HLB Fund in a manner designed to benefit the present and future 
citizens of Anchorage, promote orderly development, and achieve the goals of the Comprehensive Plan; and 
WHEREAS, pursuant to AMC § 25.40.025.A, the HLB Advisory Commission (HLBAC) shall hold a public hearing, 
with public notice as specified in this chapter, prior to making a recommendation to the Mayor and Assembly 
regarding the disposal of HLB land or an interest in land.  Land disposals under this chapter include land sales, 
land exchanges, leases and easements; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed action is not in the 2023 HLB Annual Work Program (AR 2023-235), and pursuant 
to AMC § 25.40.020B, to proceed with the action the 2023 HLB Annual Work Program must be amended; and 

WHEREAS, HLB posted the property, conducted public notice and an agency review by all potentially 
interested municipal agencies to establish no objections to the disposal by lease; and   

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Transportation/Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has 
leased this property from the Municipality since 1976; and 

WHEREAS, the HLBAC finds the disposal in the best interest of the Municipality and consistent with the HLB 
purpose and mission; now therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE HLBAC RECOMMENDS ASSEMBLY APPROVAL OF THE DISPOSAL BY LEASE, AT FAIR 
MARKET VALUE, TO THE FAA OF PORTIONS WITHIN HLB PARCELS 4-033A AND 4-034, LEGALLY DESCRIBED AS 
TRACT A AIRPORT SUBDIVISION (PLAT 95-5) AND E2 SEC 31 T13N R4W AND TO AMEND THE 2023 HLB 
ANNUAL WORK PROGRAM. 
 
 
PASSED and APPROVED on this, the 25th day of January, 2024. 
 
Approved:         Attest: 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
L. Dean Marshall, MPA, Chair    Tiffany Briggs, Director 
Heritage Land Bank Advisory Commission  Real Estate Department/HLB 


	1d 24Jan President Margo Bellamy - ASD Report for January 2024
	1e HLB update for GBOS 1_22_24
	4 Girdwood Projects
	5b Police CMR January 2023
	5c ADD GBOS PR meeting updates 1.22.24
	6 Girdwood STR Regulation proposal
	6c GHEC Resolution 2023-02 STR Regulations.docx
	6d GHEC Resolution 2023-03 Service Area Bed Tax (1).docx
	8 TempWorkforceHousing_LUC20240108
	Temporary Workforce Housing Proposal
	Purpose
	Process
	Requirements
	Some Questions

	9 Holtan Hills notes
	9b 2023-04 Holtan Hills Rejection
	9c GHEC Motion for HH
	9d HHHAC Letter RE Holtan Hills Project 9.22
	Holtan Hills Advisory Committee Letter 9.14
	Attachment A MOA HLB RFP
	Attachment B CY et al proposal
	Attachment C Development Agreement

	9e Holtan Hills Advisory Committee Letter final
	11 HLB work Plan edits
	11a GHEC 2024-01 Parcel requst of HLB
	14d HLBAC_2024-01-25_Packet
	HLBAC_2023-12-14_Minutes.pdf
	MINUTES

	HLBAC_2024-01-25_Agenda (updated).pdf
	A G E N D A
	I. Call to Order and Statement of Procedure
	II. Roll Call, Introductions and Disclosures
	III. Approval of Agenda and Minutes
	IV. Director’s Report
	V. Proposed Action Items and Public Hearings (No Public Hearing shall extend over 60 minutes without an extension by majority vote of the commission. If not extended, Public Hearing may be held open and continued to the next meeting if public testimon...
	VI. Persons or Items Not on the Agenda (THREE minutes per individual, each person may only speak once, commissioners and staff will not answer questions, but may have questions for you after your testimony.)
	VII. Commissioner Comments
	VIII. Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting Date:  Thursday, February 22, 2024 at 1:30pm in the Permit & Development Center (4700 Elmore Road 99507) or via Microsoft Teams and telephone.
	IX. Adjournment






